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The year 2015 represents an important milestone for
Reorient Group (the “Group”). In May 2015, investors
led by Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited (“YFHL”)
agreed to inject approximately HK$3.9 billion of fresh
equity capital into the Group. The transaction was
completed in November, and on completion YFHL
gained control of 55.97% of the enlarged share
capital the Company. Under the full support of YFHL,
the retail business segment of the Group is setting its
sights on the long-term objective of developing and
becoming the operator of the industry’s preeminent
fin-tech based personalised wealth management
services platform — ultimately the first-choice wealth
management platform for customers in China to
reach the global markets, and for global markets
and customers to enter China. At the same time,
the long-term objective for the Group’s corporate
finance business segment is to become the advisor of
choice for onshore Chinese corporates expanding into
offshore capital markets or considering M&A activities.

For the Group, the capital investment by YFHL has
brought not only new capital, but also new and
exciting business prospects, visions and strategies.
For our employees, this investment has meant
new developments horizons and platform; for our
customers, this is the beginning of a brand-new
service experience. And, for all our shareholders, we
see continuous value creation with new opportunities.

Our vision for the future of wealth management
services is forged from our understanding of the China
market. With their rich experience in the Chinese
consumer e-commerce market, and their extensive
business networks, YFHL and its shareholders
understand the uniqueness of the China market,
and the demands, potential markets, consumption
patterns, and wealth management needs of our target
customers. This gives our Group a unique vantage
point. Added to this, one of the key objectives of the
policies in the Thirteenth Five-year Plan of the Central
Government in China is comprehensive establishment
of a moderately prosperous society in China. In the
long-run, we see incomes and personal wealth of
mainland Chinese (especially upper middle class to
high net worth individuals) increasing gradually, which,
combined with the irreversible internationalization
of the RMB, will generate enormous demands for
premium wealth management services.
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To implement these strategies, we are: (i) continuing
to optimise and rationalise the Group’s business lines,
staffing and financial assets portfolio; (ii) increasing
capacities in existing businesses and further upskilling
in brokerage, investment banking and financial
advisory, asset allocation, wealth management
and risk management solutions; (iii) utilising the
internet and big data technologies, and cross border
resources accessed through the shareholders of
YFHL; and (iv) acquiring and initiating opportunities
that provide synergies for wealth management
businesses, financial technologies, as well as our
existing businesses.

In the few short months since the capital injection,
initial progress and results have been swift, including:
seamless transition from old to new management
structures, further recruit of core management
team members, rationalising non-core business
segments, scheduled disposal of non-core financial
assets, building of a infrastructure and product
development team (currently around 30 strong and
fully in operation). The Group’s inaugural product, a
mobile securities trading application (“Majik Wealth”
or “IEEEAIE "), recently debuted in the Alipay Red
Packet Segment (X {4 Z AL & & &) during CCTV’s
Spring Festival Gala for the Year of the Monkey (/

ERABREFHHEBKRE) - initiating the product’s
mass brand-building through the age-old tradition of
handing out red packets. The Group has also seized
the opportunity provided by the latest supplement
to the mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), to establish a joint
venture securities company in China, committing
an initial RMB 430 million on execution of the joint
venture agreement, and now pursuing a regulatory
license application procedures in the hope that the
joint venture may obtain the requisite license within
the year.
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2016 sets the stage for the Group’s new business
strategies. From our solid foundations, implementation
of the Group’s business plans will be done through
meticulous and orderly execution and planning
— continuing core infrastructure and systems
enhancements, and tightening Group corporate
governance. Meanwhile, we will pay close attention
to external economic changes. Since 2015, global
economic conditions have been in turmoil. With
unexpected changes to the RMB exchange rate,
initiation of a US interest rate hike cycle and a
continuing oil slump, we are expecting to see
continuing downward pressures on the Chinese
economy and regional political uncertainties well into
2016. This gloomy and unpredictable ‘New Normal’
economic status quo will bring new challenges and
opportunities alike. But, with the Group’s current
cash-rich and zero-debt balance sheet, the Group is
well-positioned for these challenges and opportunities.
We firmly believe the downward pressures on China’s
economy represent an inevitable step in a broader
structural adjustment. We are optimistic in the long-
term healthy development of China’s economy.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to the Group’s staff for their dedication
and hard work, and their persistent support for the
customers of the Group. | sincerely thank all our
shareholders for their trust and support.

Li Ting
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 February 2016
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The Company’s strategy on future development

In November 2015, the Company completed the
subscription of new shares of the Company by
YFHL, and currently YFHL controls 55.97% of
the total issued shares of the Company. The
development strategy of the Company subsequent
to the completion of the subscription was set out in
the circular in relation to such subscription issued
to shareholders by the Company on 18 August
2015 (hereinafter referred to as the “Circular”). The
Company has undertaken that, it would carry out a
detailed review of the Group’s development strategy
subsequent to the completion of the subscription,
and the relevant review work has been progressing
in an orderly manner. Recently, the Company has
completed a phased review. The general direction
of development will remain to become an innovative
internet financial services institution and a wealth
management platform, providing comprehensive
financial and wealth management services spanning
both local and overseas capital markets. To implement
the development strategy, the Company will (i)
continue to optimise and rationalise the business
activities, personnel deployment and assets portfolio
(in particular, reduce the holdings of financial assets
in due course); (ii) strengthen the existing business
and continue to reinforce its expertise in the areas of
brokerage, investment and corporate advisory, asset
allocation, wealth management and risk management
solutions; (iii) leverage YFHL’s capabilities in internet
technology and big data as well as its advantage
in cross-border resources; (iv) acquire or establish
a presence in businesses related to private wealth
management and financial technology, and invest in
projects that bring synergies to existing businesses.
The Company considers that the above mentioned
development strategy has no material difference
essentially from the development strategy as set out
in the Circular.
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The Company’s strategy on future development
(Continued)

The turnover and revenue by each business line were
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

Brokerage ~a
— Turnover - RBBE
— Revenue — s
Consultancy and advisory &)
— Revenue — W

Brokerage Business

The Group provides brokerage services for securities
in Hong Kong, Shanghai via Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect scheme and major exchanges in
overseas countries.

Primarily due to recent market slump, the Group
recorded a 55% decrease of commission income
generated from securities brokerage compared to
prior year.

Financial Consultancy and Advisory Business

Financial consultancy and advisory business of
the Group maintained a strong growth in 2015
and generated a total income of HK$182.9 million,
representing a growth of about 73% from that in
2014. We received listed shares of clients as part of
the fees in respect of a project. These arrangements
generated gain from holding these listed shares based
on their market value as at the end of the year, which
was recorded as other income in the consolidated
income statement.

The Group considers that there is still a substantial
demand from Chinese entities to establish their capital
market platform in Hong Kong. The Group has built
a strong reputation in this market segment, and will
continue to focus on advisory work in respect of M&A
and other fund raising activities to generate higher
fees and margins.
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Consolidated financial results
The financial highlights of the Group were as follows:

Consolidated profit and loss analysis for the year
ended 31 December, HK$ million

Revenue Y &
Other net (loss)/income Hih(E518),WEFEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (&) &R

(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FE), w5 F

(Loss)/profit attributable to KARERFEE AEML
owners (B518) &%

Basic (loss)/earnings per BRERNERE) BR
share (HK$) (GBT)

Final dividend proposed IRERER BEE

The net loss for the year was HK$157.0 million versus
a profit of HK$758.9 million recorded in 2014. The net
loss for the year was mainly due to the disposal of
KuangChi Science Limited (“KuangChi”) shares which
resulted in a net loss of HK$471.6 million. However,
when compared against the historical acquisition
cost of KuangChi, the disposal resulted in a net gain
of approximately HK$429.8 million. The increase
in profits tax for the year is due to the recognition
of current tax provision in respect of the disposal
of KuangChi shares and deferred tax provision for
the unrealised gain from other financial assets, with
the total amount of HK$61.9 million. The disposal
details of shares in KuangChi are as disclosed in
the announcement of Reorient Group Limited dated
18 December 2015. The aforementioned equity
investment was accounted for as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The financial assets position is monitored by the
Group’s Governance Committee and the Chief
Executive Officer. Although, the value of other
proprietary investments may significantly fluctuate
from time to time as a result of the changes in market
value of the investments; however, when compared
against the historical acquisition cost, the portfolio is
expected to generate revenue.
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Consolidated financial results (Continued)

Consolidated other gain/(loss) analysis for the year
ended 31 December, HK$ million

Net unrealised gain on financial EAFEFTABZZ
assets at fair value through ERMEERER
profit or loss W F 58

Net realised loss on financial BATFEFABRZ

asset at fair value through tRMEECSER
profit or loss Ei8F 58

Total (loss)/gain on financial BRAFEFABRZ
assets at fair value through SREE(BEB),
profit or loss W4 %E

The significant decrease in other gain is due to net
realised loss on the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss resulted from disposal of
KuangChi shares mentioned above. The resultant net
loss is based on the sale and purchase consideration
for KuangChi shares minus the fair value of KuangChi
shares as at 31 December 2014.

Consolidated financial position analysis as at
31 December, HK$ million

Total assets BEEHAE

Total equity EREE

Owner’s equity PR R PE AL RE 2=
— Per share (HK$) — BR(ET)

The Group’s total shareholders’ equity amounted to
approximately HK$4,761.3 million as at 31 December
2015 as compared to the total shareholders’ equity of
HK$1,020.9 million reported at the end of last year.
The significant increase is mainly due to the issuance
of share capital with the net proceed of approximately
HK$3,878.7 million.
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2016 sets the stage for the Group’s new business
strategy. We will put in more resources and continue
to recruit appropriate talents for the development of
finance technology-related systems and products.
Corresponding expenses are expected to increase
as compared with the 2015’s figures. While the
global economic environment has been in turmoil
since 2015, the global financial market, including
China’s A share market and Hong Kong Stock
market, has experienced volatile fluctuations with
the overall trading volume significantly reduced.
These uncertainties are expected to continue into
2016. The brokerage business, which is heavily
dependent on shares trading volume, will be hard
pressed in terms of commission income. In response
to the new situation, we have already launched the
mobile trading application, Majik Wealth (% B& &f
E ), with an aim to enhance user experience and
gradually increase customer base. With respect to
our corporate finance segment, we are of the view
that the demand of Chinese companies for building
capital market platforms in Hong Kong will remain
high. With our established reputation in the market,
we will continue to focus on providing consultation
service in acquisitions and mergers and other fund-
raising activities, which can bring better returns
with higher fees and margins. Recently, we entered
into an agreement to establish a joint-venture
securities company in China, of which 43% is owned
by the Group. The Group has committed RMB430
million in the initial phase. We are now submitting
the application to China Securities Regulatory
Commission for the official business license, which
is expected to be issued within this year. The Group
believes that the joint-venture securities company will
bring enormous competition advantage to the platform
of the Group’s financial services business. Details
of the establishment of joint venture company have
been disclosed in Company’s announcement dated 4
February 2016.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$4,162.9 million
(31 December 2014: HK$74.6 million). As at the end of
the reporting date, the current ratio was measured at
16.4 times (31 December 2014: 2.2 times). The Group
had no bank or other borrowings at the end of the
reporting period (31 December 2014: nil).
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Issue of shares under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
1,165,173 share options were exercised. On 30
October 2014, 10,495,412 share options were
granted by the Company under its share option
scheme to eligible persons (the “Share Option
Grantees”) to subscribe for the same number
of ordinary shares of the Company. Details of
the grant of share options were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 October
2014.

Issue of subscription shares

On 7 May 2015, the Company entered into
five conditional share subscription agreements
with each of YFHL, Harbour Yields Limited,
Violet Passion Holdings Limited, Gentle Bright
Development Limited and Chosen Global
Holdings Limited (collectively, referred to as the
“Investors”). Pursuant to which the Investors
have conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue, a total of 1,942,520,000 ordinary
share of the Company (“Subscription Shares”)
at an issue price of HK$2.00 per Subscription
Share to the Investors in an aggregate amount
of HK$3,885,040,000. Out of the 1,942,520,000
Subscription Shares, 1,342,976,000 Subscription
Shares representing a shareholding percentage of
approximately 55.97% as enlarged by the issue
of the Subscription Shares upon the completion
of the subscription, would be subscribed for
by Jade Passion Limited (“Jade Passion”), an
indirect subsidiary owned as to 73.21% by YFHL.
The subscription was completed on 9 November
2015, and Jade Passion became the new
controlling shareholder and YFHL became the
ultimate holding shareholder of the Company.

After deducting the expenses in connection with
the transaction amounting to HK$6,358,000,
the net proceeds from the subscription were
HK$3,878,682,000.

Details of the issuance of subscription shares
and the use of proceeds have been disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 18 August 2015.
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The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments and derivative instruments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group. The underlying equity
securities of the Group’s unlisted derivatives are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
dealt with in the consolidated income statement. The
performance is monitored regularly, together with an
assessment of its relevance to the Group’s strategic
plans.

At 31 December 2015, it was estimated that an
increase or decrease of 5% in the relevant stocks,
with all other variables held constant, would increase
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained earnings) of
HK$17,616,000 (2014: HK$46,243,000) or decrease
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained earnings) of
HK$17,597,000 (2014: HK$46,451,000).

The Group has assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency and that
are subject to fluctuation in foreign exchange amounts
in the different currencies. The Group considers that
its exposure to US dollar (“USD”) is insignificant, on
the grounds that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to the USD. The Group is exposed to currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, mainly to
the extent of its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and bank balances in currencies other
than the USD, such as the Australian Dollars and
Renminbi. Management of the Group monitors the
foreign exchange exposure and will hedge significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group did not engage in the use of other financial
instruments for hedging purposes, and there were no
hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December
2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREMWE S

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associates during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
have any charges on assets, other than a security
deposit of HK$30,000,000 for banking facilities.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, rental payments under
non-cancellable operating leases on office premises
amounted to HK$38,183,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$33,220,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

STAFFING AND REMUNERATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 87
(2014: 73) full time employees, 60 (2014: 65) of which
were located in Hong Kong, 2 (2014: 2) in the United
States and 25 (2014: 6) in the People’s Republic of
China. The remuneration of employees includes salary
and discretionary bonus. The Group also adopted
share option and share award schemes to provide an
incentive to the employees.

The remuneration policy and package, including
the share options and share awards, of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and
reviewed annually by the management.

REORIENT GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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Mr. Yu Feng, aged 52, was appointed as the
Chairman and a non-executive Director of the
Company and the chairman of Nomination Committee
of the Company on 9 November 2015. Mr. Yu is the
founder and chairman of Yunfeng Capital, a private
equity firm founded by Mr. Yu together with other
entrepreneurs in 2010. Mr. Yu served as an executive
director of Media Asia Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 08075), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from June 2011
to September 2015. Mr. Yu served as a non-executive
director of Alibaba Health Information Technology
Limited (stock code: 00241), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange from April 2014
to September 2015, a director of Huayi Brothers
Media Corporation, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300027), from August 2014 to June
2015 and a director of Shanghai Guangdian Electric
Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601616), from December
2010 to April 2014. Mr. Yu served as a co-chairman
of Focus Media Holding Limited from February 2006
to May 2008 and as chairman and chief executive
officer of Target Media Holdings Limited prior to its
acquisition by Focus Media Holding Limited.

Mr. Yu is a director of YFHL and Jade Passion, both
YFHL and Jade Passion are substantial shareholders
of the Company.

Mr. Yu obtained an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School, the PRC in March 2001
and a master of arts degree in philosophy from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1991.

Ms. Li Ting, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 9 November 2015. Ms.
Li is currently the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Ms. Li has over 18 years of experience
in the financial industry, including fixed income and
derivatives analytics, risk management, portfolio
management, sales and market developments, and
business planning and execution, in the U.S.A., the
PRC and Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Li was a senior managing director and head of Asia
ex-Japan of State Street Global Advisors, Hong Kong.

Ms. Li holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from
Nankai University, the PRC, and a master’s degree in
finance from Boston College, the U.S.A..
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Mr. Huang Xin, aged 40, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 9
November 2015. Mr. Huang is a partner and a member
of the investment committee of Yunfeng Capital. Mr.
Huang served as vice president of Shanghai Kaituo
Capital Limited from 2006 to 2010, where he was in
charge of various investments. Mr. Huang was vice
president of finance at Target Media Holdings Limited
from 2005 to 2006, where Mr. Huang managed its
daily financial operations and led its equity financing
and merger and integration with Focus Media Holding
Limited. Mr. Huang worked at General Electric
Company from 1997 to 2005 and during 2004 and
2005, Mr. Huang served as the finance manager of GE
Plastics Asia Pacific Operation.

Mr. Huang is a director of Key Imagination Limited
(“Key Imagination”) and Jade Passion, both Key
Imagination and Jade Passion are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a master of business
administration degree from China Europe International
Business School, the PRC in October 2011 and
a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1997.

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, aged 64, joined the
Board in 2011. He was the Chairman of the Company,
and the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company until he resigned from these positions on
9 November 2015. Mr. Ko remains as an executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Ko beneficially holds 100% interest in Gainhigh
Holdings Limited (“Gainhigh”). He is also a director of
Gainhigh and Insula Holdings Limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ko is the father
of Ms. Ko Wing Yan, Samantha, who was one of
the executive Directors of the Company until her
resignation on 9 November 2015. Currently, Mr. Ko
is the deputy chairman and an executive director of
Frontier Services Group Limited (stock code: 00500),
the chairman and an executive director of Varitronix
International Limited (Stock Code: 00710). Mr. Ko is
an executive director of KuangChi Science Limited
(stock code: 00439), and Mr. Ko had also been the
vice chairman and an executive director of Concord
New Energy Group Limited (Stock Code: 00182) until
19 June 2015, the shares of which are all listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ko has extensive experience
in corporate finance, corporate restructuring, and
mergers and acquisitions, and also has extensive
experience in international trade, investment, media
and technology businesses.
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Ms. Hai, Olivia Ou, aged 35, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 9 November
2015. Ms. Hai is a managing director of Yunfeng
Capital and specializes in investments related to the
financial services industry. Prior to joining Yunfeng
Capital, Ms. Hai was an actuarial partner at Deloitte
China from 2012, and was engaged in the provision
of consulting services to overseas and domestic
insurance companies. Ms. Hai has also worked at
HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited in Hong Kong from
2010 to 2012 and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the
United Kingdom from 2002 to 2010.

Ms. Hai is a qualified fellow member of the Institute
and Faculty of Actuaries in the United Kingdom and
is a board representative of both the Life Board and
the Education Board of the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries in the United Kingdom. She is also a fellow
member of the China Association of Actuaries.

Ms. Hai obtained a bachelor’s degree in actuarial
science from Cass Business School, the United
Kingdom, in 2002.

Mr. Huang Youlong, aged 39, was appointed as
a non-executive Director of the Company on 9
November 2015. Mr. Huang is the chairman of Damo
Gold Ocean Group Limited, the chairman of Mongolian
Desert Resources LLC. and the chairman of Grand
Asia Pacific Investment Holding Pte. Ltd..

Mr. Huang is a director of Jade Passion, the
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. Lin Lijun, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 9 November 2015.
Mr. Lin was the founder of China Universal Asset
Management Co., Ltd., an award-winning and
diverse asset management company founded by
Mr. Lin in April 2004 and at which he had served
as chief executive officer until April 2015. Under his
stewardship, China Universal Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. has grown to be one of the top asset managers
in China, with US$70 billion under management.

Mr. Lin is an independent director of Shanghai
Chengtou Holding Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600649), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and
an independent director of Shanda Games Limited, a
company with its American depositary shares listed
on NASDAQ (symbol: GAME).

Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s
degree in economics from Fudan University, the
PRC, in 1994 and 1997 respectively, and a master
of business administration degree from Harvard
University, the U.S.A. in 20083.
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Mr. Qi Daqging, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company,
and a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company on 18 February 2016. Mr. Qi is currently
a professor of Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He previously served as director and
associate dean of the executive master of business
administration department. Mr. Qi’s research interests
primarily focus on financial accounting, financial
reporting and their impact on corporate business
strategy. Mr. Qi has published many articles in
accounting and finance journals. Mr. Qi worked
at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the
Feature Syndicate of the Department of Home News
for Overseas, Xinhua News Agency prior to joining
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2002.
Mr. Qi currently serves as independent director of
Sohu.com Inc. (NASDAQ: SOHU), Bona Film Group
Limited (NASDAQ: BONA), iKang Healthcare Group,
Inc. (NASDAQ: KANG) and Momo Inc. (NASDAQ:
MOMO), all of which are listed on NASDAQ; and
independent non-executive director of Honghua
Group Limited (stock code: 00196); SinoMedia
Holding Limited (stock code: 00623); Jutal Offshore
Oil Services Limited (stock code: 03303) and Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (stock code:
03699), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
During the past three years, he was an independent
director of Focus Media Holding Limited (NASDAQ:
FMCN) and AutoNavi Holdings Ltd. (NASDAQ:
AMAP), all of which were listed on NASDAQ, and
an independent director of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 000002; and listed on the Stock Exchange
since 25 June 2014, stock code: 02202).

Mr. Qi graduated with a doctoral degree in accounting
from The Eli Broad Graduate School of Management
of Michigan State University in the United States
in 1996. He also obtained a master’s degree in
management from University of Hawaii in the
United States in 1992 and dual bachelor’s degrees
(in biophysics and international news) from Fudan
University in 1985 and 1987 respectively.
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Mr. Liu Zhengui, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director, the member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu joined the
Board in 2011. Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in
management engineering from HeFei University of
Technology. Mr. Liu has over 40 years’ experience
in corporate finance and capital management.
During the period from 2004 to 2009, Mr. Liu was
the chairman of Bank of China Group Investment
Limited (BOCGI). Prior to that, he served as the vice
president and president of Bank of China’s branches
in three different provinces for 16 years. Mr. Liu is
also the vice chairman and a non-executive director
of Brockman Mining Limited (stock code: 00159), the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard, aged 67, joined the
Board in 2011, is an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chu was the vice president, Asia and chief
representative, China of Teck Resources Limited
(formerly Teckcominco Limited). Mr. Chu was
responsible for the development of an Asian strategy
for the company, monitoring China’s economic
performance and promoting business development
opportunities in China. Mr. Chu held various positions
including corporate controller for Teck Resources
Limited from 1978 to 2007 and was the vice president,
Asia and chief representative, China from 2007 to April
2011. Mr. Chu holds a bachelor degree in commerce
from University of British Columbia and was a member
of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
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Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, BBS, JP, aged 58, joined
the Board in 2012, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company. Dr. Wong received a doctorate in
Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987.
Dr. Wong has extensive experience in manufacturing,
direct investment and international trade. Dr. Wong is
active in public service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of
the 12th National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China. He is also Chairman of the Land
and Development Advisory Committee, Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority and Protection
of Wages on Insolvency Fund Board. Dr. Wong Was
appointed a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was
awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2012 for his
valuable contribution to the society.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Concord New Energy Group Limited
(formerly known as China WindPower Group Limited)
(stock code: 00182), China Jiuhao Health Industry
Corporation Limited (stock code: 00419), Redco
Properties Group Limited (stock code: 01622),
Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock code: 00604)
and Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (stock code:
00934), the shares of which are all listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. John Maguire, aged 52, joined the Group in 2011,
is the Head of Corporate Finance of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Maguire was the managing
director and a co-founder of OSK Capital Hong Kong
Limited (formerly Ernst & Young Corporate Finance
Limited) from 2000 to 2011. Before that, Mr. Maguire
was the executive director of Worldsec Corporate
Finance Limited (“Worldsec”) (an associate of Bank
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi) responsible for Worldsec’s
investment banking activities in Hong Kong and South
East Asia from 1995 to 2000. Prior to relocating to
Hong Kong in 1991, Mr. Maguire worked as a solicitor
in the City of London.
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Mr. Maguire is a member of the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Maguire is the deputy
chairman of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel, a
member of the Takeovers Appeal Committee and a
member of the Securities and Futures Commission’s
Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts. Mr.
Maguire is the chairman of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute.

Mr. Maguire is a solicitor admitted in Hong Kong and
in England and Wales (non-practicing) and is a Senior
Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute.

Mr. Chan Man Ko, aged 41, joined the Group in
2015, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
the Company Secretary. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Chan worked for China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 0966) for over 11
years and had served several positions including
deputy general manager of finance department, chief
financial officer and company secretary. Prior to
this, he worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for 7
years. Mr. Chan is an associate member of Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
associate member and practicing member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Tiu Ka Chun, aged 38, joined Reorient Group in
March 2012 as General Counsel and he brings with
him over 15 years of corporate and legal experience
covering a broad range of financial institutions in the
Asia Pacific. Mr. Tiu was the Asia head of legal and
compliance for Cantor Fitzgerald and BGC Partners
covering Hong Kong, China, Singapore, Japan, Korea,
Australia and new markets in Asia. Prior to that, Mr.
Tiu was an exotic derivatives, structured products and
regulatory specialist at Macquarie Group, and legal
counsel at CITIC Capital, where he supported the
firm’s hedge funds, private equity funds and direct
investments in Asia. Mr. Tiu is a solicitor admitted
to practice in New South Wales, Australia (non-
practicing), and spent the early years of practice as a
solicitor at Minter Ellison in Sydney, primarily servicing
Australian fund managers and telecommunications
firms.

Mr. Tiu graduated with a Bachelor of Arts (Political

Science) and a Bachelor of Laws from The University
of New South Wales.
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Ms. Ho Man Yee, aged 51, joined the Group in
2011, is the Head of Operations and responsible for
managing and overseeing the Middle Office, Back
Office Settlement and Clearing functions across all
products within the Group.

Prior joining the Group, Ms. Ho was a corporate
director, regional head of cash equity operations —
APAC at Royal Bank of Scotland and was responsible
for managing the delivery of Asia equities operations
to meet the service level objectives with internal
and external clients. Before that, Ms. Ho was the
corporate director of ABN AMRO Bank managing
the cash equity and futures & options business from
1998-2008. She had also been appointed as the head
of operations risk control, business management and
reference data management since October 2006.

Ms. Ho has over 25 years’ experience in securities
industry at various major banks and brokerage firms in
Hong Kong. She began her career at the Bank of East
Asia Limited and HG Asia Limited (formerly named
Hoare Govett) managing the settlement of equities,
futures & options and margin business. Before joining
ABN AMRO, she was the operations manager at
Deutsche Bank in charge of setting up the futures &
options operations.

Ms. Ho holds a Master Degree and postgraduate
diploma in Strategic Human Resources Management
from Hong Kong Baptist University. She also
completed a Diploma course of Derivatives and Risk
Management in the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology.

Mr. He Shigiang, aged 46, joined the Group in 2015,
is Head of Information Technology of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. He was the head
of operations of Pacific Asset Management Co., a
member of the Shanghai-based Pacific Insurance
Group from 2013 to 2015. Before that, Mr. He
worked, from 2009 to 2013, for Shanghai-based
BNY Mellon Western Fund Management Co., a joint
venture between BNY Mellon Group of New York
and Western Securities Co. of Xi’an, China where he
served as CTO, CRO and COO and was a member
of the company supervisory board. Prior to moving
to Shanghai, Mr. He worked as various technology
roles in the U.S., including as software architect for
Maple Securities USA. Mr. He received a B.S. degree
from Peking University and a master degree from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of REORIENT
GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
It believes that a high standard of corporate
governance provides a framework and solid
foundation for attracting and retaining high calibre
and talented management, promoting high standards
of accountability and transparency and meeting the
expectations of all the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”).

The principles of corporate governance adopted by
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) stress the importance of a quality board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all the Shareholders.

Throughout year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Year”), the Board has reviewed the Group’s
corporate governance practices and is satisfied that
the Company has complied with the provisions of the
relevant Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”),
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has adopted the code of conduct
regarding director’s securities transactions with terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as
stated in the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s strategies, policies, and business plans,
regulating and reviewing internal controls and
risk management system, formulating the Group’s
corporate governance policy, and supervising the
management of the business operations of the
Group to ensure that its business objectives are
met. The Board also ensures adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the Board members.
The senior management of the Group is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group and
accountable to the Board.
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The Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Group. The Board comprises the following
Directors during the Year:

Chairman

Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive
Director)

(appointed on 9 November 2015)

Executive Directors

Ms. Li Ting (Chief Executive
Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
Mr. Jason Boyer (resigned on 23 January 2015)
Mr. Brett McGonegal (resigned on 2 February 2016)
Mr. Chen Shengjie (resigned on 9 November 2015)
(
(

(appointed on 9 November 2015)

(appointed on 9 November 2015)

Mr. Tsoi Tong Hoo, Tony resigned on 9 November 2015)
Ms. Ko Wing Yan, Samantha resigned on 9 November 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou
Mr. Huang Youlong
Mr. Dorian M. Barak

(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(resigned on 9 November 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Lijun

Mr. Qi Daging

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

Mr. Liu Zhengui

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David
BBS, JP

Mr. Ding Kebai

(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(appointed on 18 February 2016)

(resigned on 23 January 2015)

The current Directors and their brief biographical
details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.
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Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (“Mr. Ko”), was the
Chairman of the Company until 9 November 2015, and
currently is an executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ko is the father of Ms. Ko Wing Yan, Samantha
(“Ms. Ko”), whom also was an executive Director of
the Company until her resignation as director on 9
November 2015. Mr. Ko, Ms. Ko and Dr. Wong Yau
Kar, David were directors of Concord New Energy
Group Limited (formerly, China WindPower Group
Limited) until 19 June 2015 when Mr. Ko and Ms. Ko
resigned as its directors. Mr. Ko and Mr. Tsoi Tong
Hoo, Tony (“Mr. Tsoi”) were directors of Varitronix
International Limited, until Mr. Tsoi resigned as its
director on 31 March 2015. The shares of the above
companies are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed in the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report, there are no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships between Board
members and between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer (the “CEQ”).

The Company has been maintaining the number of
independent non-executive Directors at not less than
one-third of the number of the Board members and
has ensured that at least one of the independent
non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing
Rules. The participation of independent non-executive
Directors in the Board brings independent judgement
to ensure the interests of all Shareholders have been
duly considered.

For a Director to be considered independent, that
Director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of Directors, the Board follows the requirement set
out in the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors
a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in respect of the year ended
31 December 2015 and the Company considers that
they are independent.
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All independent non-executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term. But all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company according to
the requirement in the articles of association of the
Company and the Listing Rules (at least once every 3
years).

None of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which requires the Company to give
a period of notice of more than one year or to pay
compensation or make other payments equivalent to
more than one year’s emolument.

The Chairman (assumed by Mr. Yu Feng) is
responsible for setting strategic targets, providing
leadership to the Board, monitoring Board
effectiveness and fostering constructive relationship
between Directors.
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The CEO (assumed by Ms. Li Ting) is responsible for
managing the business of the Group, attending to the
formulation and implementation of Group’s policies,
and assuming full accountability for the Group’s
operations. Acting as the principal manager of the
Group’s business, the CEO develops a strategic
operating plan that reflects the long-term objectives
and priorities established by the Board, and is
directly responsible for maintaining the operational
performance of the Group. Working with the senior
management and the Board, the CEO ensures that
the funding requirements of the business are met and
closely monitors the operating and financial results
against the plans. The CEO also takes remedial
actions when necessary and advise the Board of any
significant developments and issues of the Group.

The Board meets regularly and at least 4 times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of
the Group provides to the Directors the information
on the activities and developments in the businesses
of the Group on a timely basis and, when required,
additional Board meetings are held. In addition,
the Directors have full access to the information of
the Group and to independent professional advice
whenever should they consider necessary. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, a total 20 Board
meetings and two general meetings, including the
annual general meeting (“2015 AGM”) were held and
the attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Chairman £

Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)

BRLE(FHITEE)
Executive Directors $1{TE%

Ms. Li Ting (Chief Executive Officer)
TRut(THEH)

Mr. Huang Xin

BERE

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
EiRIBELE

Mr. Jason Boyer

Jason Boyer %4

Mr. Brett McGonegal

Brett McGonegal L £

Mr. Chen Shengjie
REBALE

Mr. Tsoi Tong Hoo, Tony
BRELL

Ms. Ko Wing Yan, Samantha
sERLt

Non-executive Directors E#TEZ

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou
BEut

Mr. Huang Youlong
BERELE

Mr. Dorian M. Barak
Dorian M. Barak &4

(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(R=ZE-RFt-ANBEZEE)

(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(RZB-EE+-ANEEZEE)
(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(R=B-H5+-ANAEZEE)

(resigned on 23 January 2015)
(R=B-RE5-A=+ZHEE)
(resigned on 2 February 2016)
(R=B-R"EZAZHEHE)
(resigned on 9 November 2015)
(RZB-HE+-ANHEE)
(resigned on 9 November 2015)
(R=Z-R%F+-ARBERE)
(resigned on 9 November 2015)

(R=Z2-EF+-ANAR{E)

(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(RZZE-RF+-ANBEZRE)
(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(R=B-RF+-ANBEZER)
(resigned on 9 November 2015)
(R=Z-ZF+-ANABHE)

Independent non-executive Directors B FH{TES

Mr. Lin Lijun

MAELE

Mr. Qi Daging

BRELE

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
RRFRE

Mr. Liu Zhengui

AV ELE

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David BBS, JP
ERERL,BBS JP

Mr. Ding Kebai

TRA%XE

* 2015 AGM was held on 2 June 2015
EGM was held on 2 September 2015

(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(R=Z-RF+-ANBEZR)
(appointed on 18 February 2016)
(R=Z-~F-B+N\BEZE)

(resigned on 23 January 2015)
(R=B-RF-A-+=HEH)

Number of meetings
attended in the year ended
31 December 2015/Number of
meetings eligible to attend
BE-Z-RF+-A=+-HLFE
LEZEBHUE AERLEZEEHEA
Board

meetings 2015 AGM* EGM*
“®-1f

EZ08E RRBFEAS* RIRBHAE*

2/3 N/A N/A

TEH TEHR

3/3 N/A N/A

TER TER

3/3 N/A N/A

TER TER

18/19 11 11

2/2 N/A N/A

TEA TEA

18/19 11 11

14/17 0/1 11

14/17 11 0/1

16/17 0/1 11

3/3 N/A N/A

TEH TEH

2/3 N/A N/A

FER TER

16/17 11 11

2/3 N/A N/A

FE TE
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18/19 11 11

1719 11 11

17/19 11 11

2/2 N/A N/A

TER TER
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All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses
and activities of the Group. Each newly appointed
Director would receive an induction package
covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. The Group also provides briefings and
other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills, and updates all directors on the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all
Directors have received the following trainings:
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Directors Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

relevant topics
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Policy”) in October 2013 which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of a Board that
possesses an appropriate balance and levels of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
essential to support the execution of its corporate
and business strategies and to enhance the quality
and effectiveness of its performance. Board diversity
will strengthen the Company’s strategic objectives in
driving business results; enhancing good corporate
governance and reputation; and attracting and
retaining talent for the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
including professional qualifications and experience,
cultural and educational background, race and
ethnicity, gender, age and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration factors
based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

On recommendation from the Nomination Committee,
the Board will set measurable objectives to implement
the Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.
The Nomination Committee of the Company will review
the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

A copy of the Policy is published on the Company’s
website for public information.
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Regarding the corporate governance function, during
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
Besides, the Company has set up three committees
including the, nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the audit committee. Each committee
has its specific terms of reference with reference to
the CG Code.

The remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) was chaired by
Mr. Liu Zhengui until his resignation as chairman
of the Remuneration Committee on 9 November
2015, when Mr. Lin Lijun was appointed as the
chairman and Mr. Huang Xin appointed as a member
of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Qi Daqing
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 18 February 2016, with Mr. Liu
Zhengui and Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard being the
other members. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible to make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management of the Group. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee shall meet as and when
required to consider remuneration related matters
such as making recommendations to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management, and to assist the
Group in the administration of the fair and transparent
procedure for setting policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. The
written terms of reference are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held
4 meetings with all relevant members present. The
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
packages for Directors and senior management of the
Group.
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The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) was chaired by Mr. Ko Chun
Shun, Johnson until his resignation as chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 9 November 2015, when
Mr. Yu Feng was appointed as the chairman and Mr.
Lin Lijun appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee, Mr. Qi Daging was appointed as a member
of the Nomination Committee on 18 February 2016,
with Mr. Liu Zhengui and Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
being the other members. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee have been determined with
reference to the CG Code and posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least once every year, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting individuals
nominated for directorship (if necessary), assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular
the Chairman and the chief executive officers. In
considering the nomination of new directors, the
Board will take into account the qualification, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
the review of the Board’s diversity policy, considering
factors including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service of Board members, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the board diversity policy, and monitor
the progress on achieving the measurable objectives.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
2 meetings with all relevant members present. The
committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and identified and nominated candidates
to be the members of the Board.

During 2015, Mr. Yu Feng (Chairman), Ms. Li Ting
(Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Huang Xin, Ms. Hai
Olivia Ou, Mr. Huang Youlong, Mr. Lin Lijun and
Mr. Qi Daging were appointed as Director of the
Company. In considering the new appointments of
directors and positions, the Nomination Committee
assessed the candidates on criteria such as integrity,
independent mindedness, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out their duties and
responsibilities effectively as well as assessed the
independence of certain candidates to be appointed
as independent non-executive directors, etc. and
made recommendations to the Board for approval.
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The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard (“Mr Chu”), with existing and former members
of Mr. Lin Lijun, Mr. Qi Daqing, Mr. Liu Zhengui,
Mr. Ding Kebai and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, BBS,
JP. Mr. Ding Kebai resigned as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company on 23 January 2015,
on the same date, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, BBS,
JP, was appointed as the new member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Lin Lijun and Mr. Qi Daqing were
appointed as members of the Audit Committee on 9
November 2015 and 18 February 2016 respectively.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and is a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr.
Chu has appropriate professional qualifications as
required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under its
amended terms of reference, dated 21 December
2015, the Audit Committee is required, amongst other
things, to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors, to review the Group’s preliminary results,
interim results and annual financial statements and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system, internal audit
and risk management matters and to review the
Group’s financial and accounting policies.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the Year
with all relevant members present.

There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, inter alia, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, financial
reporting and risk management matters of the Group.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed, and has
discussions with external auditors, on the interim and
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services i
as follows:

»

Nature of services REME
Audit services FEiTIRTE
Other services Hih R %
Total et

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal
control system and has the responsibility for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Company and its subsidiaries
have adopted a set of internal control procedures and
policies to safeguard the assets, to ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records and reliability of
financial reporting, and to ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. The internal
control system is designed to ensure the financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions are in place and functioning
effectively. The Board has conducted a review of
and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal
control system, including financial, operational,
compliance controls, and risk management functions
of the Group.

The Board also reviews, at least annually, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function, internal audit function, risk
management functions, and their training programmes
and budget.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
reports to the Board, and is responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
information flows and communications among Directors
as well as with Shareholders and the management.

Mr. Jim Pak Keung, Patrick resigned and Mr. Chan
Man Ko has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 18
February 2016. Both Mr. Jim and Mr. Chan have
complied with the training requirement of the Listing
Rules during the Year.

How Shareholders Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

An EGM may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of Shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition
(as the case may be) pursuant to section 566 to 568
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and the
articles of association of the Company. The objects
of the meeting must be stated in the requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited
at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in the Companies Ordinance for convening an
EGM.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Shareholders
representing not less than one-fortieth (2.5%) of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders; or not less
than 50 Shareholders holding shares in the Company
on which there has been paid up an average sum,
per Shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000, may
make requisition in writing for proposing resolution
or business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance for putting forward a proposal
at a general meeting.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Suites 3201-3204, One Exchange Square, 8
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2845 9036/(852) 3102 9022
Email: ir@reorientgroup.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

The Board is committed to providing clear and
full performance information of the Group to the
Shareholders through the publication of interim and
annual reports. In addition to the circulars, notices
and financial reports sent to the Shareholders,
additional information of the Group is also available to
the Shareholders on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting for which at least 20 clear business
days’ notice is given. The Chairman and Directors
(including Chairman/members of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee) as well as the representative of external
auditor, are available to answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. All resolutions at
the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Group’s share registrar.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company also held an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) to consider and approve the issue
and allotment of shares. The Director including
independent non-executive Directors of the Company
attended the EGM to answer related questions.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on
its effort to promote transparency and foster investor
relationships. Comments and suggestions are always
welcomed.

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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The directors of REORIENT GROUP LIMITED (the
“Director”) submit herewith their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Detailed business review is set out in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” (“MD&A”)
in this annual report from pages 7 to 10. Future
development of the Company’s business is set out
in the section of “CEQ’s Statement” and MD&A in
this annual report from pages 4 to 5 and page 11
respectively. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in MD&A in this annual report
from pages 8 to 14.

Key risks and uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring
that the risk management practices of the Group
are sufficient to mitigate the risks present in our
businesses and operations as efficiently and
effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of
this responsibility to various operational departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business
and prospects may be affected by the following
identified risks and uncertainties. The Group adopts
risk management policies, measures and monitoring
systems to pre-empt and contain exposures associated
with the identified risks.

Regulatory risk

Our businesses operate in highly-regulated markets
and our success and operations can be impacted
by changes to the regulatory environment and the
structure of these markets. The Group pays close
attention to financial regulatory and legislative
developments of the markets it operates and actively
monitors and consults with regulators of the markets
on changes which could impact our business. Many
of our key businesses are also subject to direct
regulatory oversight and we are required to maintain
the appropriate regulatory approvals and licenses
to operate, and in some cases adhere to certain
stringent financial and capital covenants.

EREEARAFNESEURENS 2REE
BEE-_Z-—AFT-A=+T-HLFEZE
ERERMB®RE -

HAMEBOEIEN T ER EEBTRRD
WI—HET7E10E - ARATEK 2 RRER
DRIENAERMITHARRE |F4E58K
[BEEENWEIM I —EFE11EH - NERE
HENMREOWIFESET14ERETAEFRK
AU ETBERRIEEHERFEZRREDIN °

TEEMETRERE

ESERREERBEAKRERERZENRERE
HER ESUREEARRKEREESD
HEk EEERBOBETRTEELER
P9 o

AEEBWFBMR - BE - EBRAZEIZUU
TeEHERE M EERZLE - NEBERH
FEREERR  BeREERS  HERIES
FF T B 9 AE FE © 38 B LB ©

EERE

BREZISEEENTHEEER » MEM
MEDEEESIEERERTSEBNE
HE o AEERBEIKEREDSHNERNE
ERIMGEER  BREANIQHSEEHRED
AR ERFARBOEL - RFANFZA0L
EBRTZEERBNEEES  AISKEEM
TNEEEEMNEEE  BE-LBRTE
AERBR-LEBRENERMREARZHE

T

39



40

Key risks and uncertainties (Continued)
Operational risk

This is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people or system issues
and from unforeseen external events. Operational risk
usually includes the risks resulted from human error
in internal operation, imperfection of internal process,
information system fault or imperfection, trading
failure and other reasons.

Our business and operations are at risk of disruption
from technologies and processes. Information
technology and systems is critical to the Group’s
operation and business development of securities
trading, settlement and service, etc. The unreliability
of system, imperfection of network technology and
data error will inflict damage and economic losses to
the Company.

The Group is responsible for managing client data and
undertakes volumes of transactional processes via
information technology and systems. There is a risk
that failure to process these transactions correctly
could result in loss and liabilities being incurred
to third parties, and result in breach of certain
regulations of the Securities & Futures Commission
(“SFC”), namely, the SFC (Client Money) Rules under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, which stipulates
that clients’ money held-in-trust by the Group’s
relevant operating subsidiaries must be reconciled,
restored daily and segregated from those of the
Group.

In order to manage these risks, the Group invests
significantly in technology, human resources and
automated processes, business continuity plans to
cope with events of operation and system failures
and disaster recovery, and has also established, a
dedicated I|.T. team which is responsible for handling
and responding rapidly to emergencies in a systematic
manner to eliminate disruptions and disasters, and
to ensure business continuity. The I.T. team also
plays an important role in assessing the technological
requirements and their viability of new business ideas
and initiatives of the Group.
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Key risks and uncertainties (Continued)
Operational risk (Continued)

The Group remains proactive in its monitoring and
improving the internal control mechanisms, limits
on authority and reporting of operational processes,
strengthening the inspection and audit, intensifying
the compliance and accountability system, to reduce
the possibility of operational risks and actively
and properly dealing with the adverse effects. The
responsibility for managing operational risks rests
with each and every employee, functions, divisions
and departments of the Group. The responsibility is
continuous and we adapt our response accordingly to
the changing operating environment.

The Group recognizes that operational risks cannot
be eliminated completely, but will strive to persist
in its strengthening and implementation of robust
compliance and risk management measures, improve
business processes, strengthen the professional
integrity and ethics of staff through education and
training to avoid, detect and identify risks, prevent
money-laundering, insider dealing, conflict of interest
and other possible violations, to pre-empt, manage
and reduce these operational risks exposure.

Credit Risk

Credit risks will arise when a client/counter-
party fails to perform its financial and contractual
obligations. To minimize and control this risk, the
Group has established and enforced stringent due
diligence assessment and credit control procedures
to evaluate the creditworthiness of its clients and
counterparties. Preventatively and clearly defined
risk control measures have been deployed to screen,
evaluate potential clients and determine and assess
the relevant creditworthiness and credit ratings which
are used to determine appropriate trading and credit
limits for all clients/counterparties, including existing
clients/counterparties.
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Key risks and uncertainties (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)

The safeguard and risk control measures include
performing pre-screening and assess the client’s
credit rating by reputable credit rating agencies;
identify and review client’s investment objectives,
investment history, trading frequency and risk
appetite; examine and review client’s/counterparty’s
past payment records and history of defaults; identify
and review the client’s capital base and the existence
and amount of guarantees and by whom such
guarantees are given, if any; identify and review any
known events which may have an adverse impact on
the client’s/counterparty’s financial status, potential
for default or accuracy of information stored regarding
the client/counterparty. Trading and credit limits,
subject to the enforced and pre-determined maximum,
are set specifically for each client in accordance with
our assessments and their respective credit rating
and trading needs. The Group’s exposure to the
client’s and counterparties’ credit risks is continually
monitored.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due
because of an ability to obtain adequate funding or
liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, the Group
continually monitors cash flows and maintains an
adequate level of cash and credit facilities to ensure
the ability to finance the Group’s operations and
reduce the effects of cash flow fluctuations.

Certain principal operating subsidiaries of the Group
are regulated by the SFC, the financial market
regulators and are subject to various liquidity and
capital requirements as prescribed by the rules of
the SFC. The Group has established procedures and
monitoring systems, monitoring on a daily basis, to
ensure that it maintains adequate and necessary liquid
capital to facilitate its operating capability, to fund its
business commitments as well as to comply with the
relevant rules including the Financial Resources Rules.

The Group has maintained banking facilities and
financing arrangement to meet cash flow contingencies
in its operations. The Company will also consider
the need to raise capital funding in order to meet
the Group’s expansion and growth in its business
operations. The management believes that the Group’s
current level of working capital is adequate to meet its
operational and financial obligations.
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Key risks and uncertainties (Continued)
Market Risk

The operating performance of the Group highly relates
to the changes in the economy, sentiments of the
investors and securities market and has significant
amount risks, volatility and uncertainties.

Market risk is the risk that the Group’s earnings and
capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
will be adversely affected by movement in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

Price risks of the Group include equity price risk,
interest rate and exchange rate fluctuation risks and
bulk commodity price risk involved in the brokerage
business, underwriting business, proprietary trading
investment and other business.

The Group currently has minimal exposure to
foreign currency risk, but continues to monitor the
relative foreign exchange positions of the mix of its
assets and liabilities. When appropriate, hedging
instruments including forward contracts, swaps and
currency loans would be used to manage the foreign
exchange exposure. The foreign currency risk is
managed and monitored on an on-going basis by
senior management and relevant operation staff of the
Group.

Equity price risk arises from fluctuation in market
prices of the Group’s investment in financial assets.
Senior management regularly reviews and monitors
the mix of securities in its investment portfolio based
on its fair value to ensure the loss arising from the
changes in the market values of the investment
portfolios is minimised and contained within an
acceptable range.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to contributing to the
sustainability of the environment and maintaining a
high standard of corporate social governance essential
for creating a framework for motivating staff, and
contributes to the community in which we conduct our
businesses and creating a sustainable return to the
Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (Continued)
Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and
encourages diversity regardless of age, gender,
marital status and race. A Board Diversity Policy,
with the aim of enhancing the quality of the Board’s
performance by diversity, was adopted in October
2018.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable
assets of an enterprise and regards human resources
as its corporate wealth. The Group is people-focused,
we attract and retain key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which
would complement and meet the corporate and
business objectives of the Group.

We provide on-the-job training and development
opportunities to promote staff self-actualisation
and enhance our employees’ career progression.
We also encourage staff participation of external
seminars, lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial
accounting and reporting, and market industry
practices. Through relevant, systematic and planned
training, staff knowledge and understanding in the
business objectives and operations, occupational
and management knowledge and skills are aligned
and enhanced, which all are conducive to improved
efficiency, productivity and overall reduction of risk
and uncertainties of the Group.

The Group encourages continuous professional
development training for the Directors and senior
management to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills which includes seminars and workshops,
updates on regulatory requirements and development
and corporate governance practices.

The Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees.
It offers competitive remuneration, share options
and share award schemes, retirement and
medical benefits, insurance and leave entitlement
commensurate to market standards, and we regularly
review the remuneration package of employees and
make necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standards. The Group has employee handbooks
outlining terms and conditions of employment,
expectations for employees’ conduct and behavior,
employees’ rights and benefits. We establish and
implement policies that promote a harmonious and
productive workplace.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (Continued)
Health and Safety

The Group provided health and safety communications
for employees to present the relevant information
and raise awareness of occupational health and
safety issues. To provide a safe working environment,
risk assessments of workstations for all users
are performed at regular intervals. Upgrades and
maintenance of tools, office and I.T. equipment are
performed to cope with the needs and demands of
employees. Cleaning of carpets and air conditioning
systems are carried out at regular intervals in order to
provide a hygienic and healthy working environment
to all staff.

Employees are also expected to take all practical
measures to ensure a safe and healthy working
environment, in keeping with their defined
responsibilities and applicable laws.

The Group is concerned with the well-being of its
employees, and provides employees with adequate
health coverage, staff are entitled to medical
insurance benefits as well as other health awareness
programs.

Environment Protection

The current businesses of the Group focus on
financial advisory services and securities broking,
with low impact on carbon emission and are not
subject to significant environmental regulation. it
prides itself as an environment friendly corporation.
However, conservation of the environment remains
a key focus for the Group, the conscious minimizing
in consumption of resources and adoption of
environmental best practices across the Group’s
businesses underlie its commitment to conserving and
improving the environment. The Group complies with
environmental legislation, encourages environmental
protection and promotes its awareness to all
employees of the organization.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (Continued)
Environment Protection (Continued)

The Group commits to the principle and practice
of recycling and reducing. To help conserve the
environment, it implements green office practices
such as re-deployment of office furniture as far as
possible, encourage use of recycled paper for printing
and copying, double-sided printing and copying,
setting up recycling bins, reduce energy consumption
by switching off idle lightings, air conditioning and
electrical appliances.

The Group will review its environmental practices from
time to time and consider implementing further eco-
friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses to embrace
the principles of reduce, recycle and reuse, and
further minimize our already low impact on the natural
environment.

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to participating in community
events and making donations and sponsorships to
charitable organizations from time to time, and to
the improvement of community well-being and social
services. The Group supports and encourages staff
to actively participate in a wide range of charitable
events outside working hours, to raise awareness
and concern for the community, and to inspire more
people to take part in serving the community.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has compliance and risk management
policies and procedures, and members of the senior
management are delegated with the continuing
responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance
with all significant legal and regulatory requirements.
These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly.
As far as the Company is aware, it has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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The principal activity of REORIENT GROUP LIMITED
is investment holding. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements. An analysis of the revenue and the results
of the Company and its subsidiaries by business
segments during the Year are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

The results of the Group for the Year, and the
statement of financial position of the Group as of 31
December 2015 are set out in the financial statements
on pages 66 to 69.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the Year (2014: nil).

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 26(e) to
the financial statements.

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 26(a) to
the financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 168.

During the Year, save as disclosed in note 26(e) and
other than acting as an agent for clients of the Group,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.
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Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into
during the year or subsisting at the end of the year
are set out below:

Share Options Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
21 July 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to the participants (being any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Directors or
consultants of each member of the Group, provided
that the board of Directors may have absolute
discretion to determine whether or not one falls within
the above category) and for such other purposes as
the Board may approve from time to time.

Pursuant to this 10-year term Share Option Scheme,
the Company can grant options to participants for a
consideration of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by
the participant.

No participant shall be granted an option, if the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted
to such participant under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant would exceed 1 per
cent of the shares in issue unless such further grant
has been approved by the shareholders in general
meeting with the participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted hereunder
shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the
date on which the option is offered to a participant,
which must be a trading day; (b) a price being the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and (c) the nominal value of a share.
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Share Options Scheme (Continued)

According to the Share Option Scheme, unless
otherwise determined by the Board, there shall be
no minimum holding period for the exercise of the
options but the options are exercisable within the
option period as determined by the Board and in any
event such period shall not be longer than 10 years
from the date upon which any particular option is
granted.

The total number of share option that could be
granted was 38,449,452, representing approximately
10% of the total issued shares of the Company on
the date of passing the resolution to refresh the Share
Option Scheme limit at the annual general meeting on
26 March 2012.

On 30 October 2014, 10,495,412 share options were
granted by the Company at a nominal consideration
under its Share Option Scheme to eligible persons (the
“Share Option Grantees”) to subscribe for the same
number of ordinary shares of the Company, subject to
the acceptance of the Share Option Grantees, upon
full exercise of which would represent 2.3% of the
enlarged total issued shares of the Company as at the
date of the grant. The market value per share on the
date of the grant of share options was HK$3.63.

None of the Share Option Grantees is a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company
or an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any
of them.

The exercise price of the share option granted was
HK$3.65. On 31 October 2014, 9,330,239 share
options were exercised and the remaining 1,165,173
share options were exercised on 13 May and on 8
June 2015. The market value per share on the dates
of exercise of the share options were HK$3.73 on
31 October 2014, HK$9.00 on 13 May 2015 and
HK$21.15 on 8 June 2015.

As at the date this report, 10,495,412 share options
were granted and exercised and the remaining number
of share option that can be granted was 27,954,040,
representing approximately 1.17% of the total issued
shares of the Company.

Movements of the share options are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Award Scheme

The Board has adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) on 30 October 2014 (the
“Adoption Date”). The Share Award Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme for the purpose of
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The principal terms of
the Share Award Scheme are outlined below.

Purpose

The Group has the intention to explore ways to
incentivize, reward and retain employees of all
levels. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is
to encourage or facilitate the holding of shares of
the Company (“Shares”) by the selected participants
(“Selected Participants”); to encourage and retain
such individuals to work with the Group; to provide
additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals, and is a complementary measure to the existing
Share Option Scheme of the Company.

Operation of the Share Award Scheme

The Share Award Scheme is administered by the
administration body (“Administration Body”) and the
trustee (“Trustee”) in accordance with the rules of the
Share Award Scheme and the trust deed.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, subject to all
relevant applicable terms, conditions and provisions
of the rules relating to the Share Award Scheme
(“Scheme Rules”), the Administration Body may at its
absolute discretion (a) select or designate any person
to be a Selected Participant; (b) determine the number
of restricted or unrestricted shares (“Grant Shares”)
to be granted to Selected Participants; or (c) deem
Shares issued upon exercise of share options granted
to selected or designated person who is or has been
granted share options (“Option Participants”) as
restricted Shares granted under the Scheme Rules.
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Operation of the Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, existing Shares
may be acquired by the Trustee at the cost of the
Company and/or new Shares may be allotted and
issued to the Trustee under general mandates granted
or to be granted by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) at general meetings from time
to time. The Company will comply with the relevant
Listing Rules when issuing the new grant Shares and
application will be made to the Stock Exchange for
the granting of the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the new Grant Shares to be issued pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall hold the restricted Shares awarded
until the Grant Shares to the relevant Selected
Participants are vested in accordance with the
Scheme Rules. Vested Shares will be transferred at
no cost to the Selected Participants. The Trustee shall
not exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares
held under the Trust.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the Board pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the Adoption
Date.

Scheme limits

No Shares shall be subscribed for and/or purchased
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, nor any
amounts paid to the Trustee for the purpose of
making such a subscription and/or purchase, if as
a result of such subscription and/or purchase, the
number of Shares administered under the Share
Award Scheme shall exceed in total 10 per cent of the
Company’s total issued shares from time to time (the
“Scheme Limit”).

The maximum number of Grant Shares which may be
granted to a Selected Participant at any one time or
in aggregate may not exceed 10 per cent of the total
issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption
Date.
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Restrictions

No grant shall be made to any Selected Participant:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

after a price sensitive event in relation to the
securities of the Company has occurred or a
price sensitive matter in relation to the securities
of the Company has been the subject of a
decision, until such price sensitive information
has been published in accordance with the
Listing Rules;

on any day on which the Company’s financial
results are published and: (a) during the period
of 60 days immediately preceding the publication
date of the Company’s annual results or, if
shorter, the period from the end of the relevant
financial year up to the publication date of the
results; and (b) during the period of 30 days
immediately preceding the publication date of the
Company’s quarterly results (if any) and half-year
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of
the relevant quarterly or half-year period up to
the publication date of the results, unless there
are circumstances of the Company that fall within
the exceptions under the Listing Rules; or

in any circumstances which are prohibited under
the Listing Rules or where the requisite approval
from any applicable regulatory authorities has not
been granted.

Awards to connected persons

Where any grant is proposed to be made to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates, such
offer must first be approved by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director to whom the grant
is proposed to be made). The Company will comply
with the applicable requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of such offer.
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Vesting of Awards

The Administration Body may, while the Share Award
Scheme is in force, determine any vesting criteria
or periods for the share awards to be vested or
credited, and such other restrictions or conditions in
respect thereof as the Administration Body may in its
discretion determine to be appropriate.

The vesting of the restricted Shares is also subject to
the Selected Participant remaining at all times after
the grant date and on the vesting date (as the case
may be, on each relevant vesting date) an eligible
option participant (“Eligible Option Participant”).

A Selected Participant shall be deemed not an Eligible
Option Participant for the purpose of the Scheme
Rules if the Selected Participant has (i) ceased or
terminated employment, engagement or appointment
of the Selected Participant; (i) become bankrupt or
failed to pay his debts within a reasonable time after
they become due; (iii) been convicted or found guilty
or liable for any criminal or civil offence or regulatory
sanction involving his integrity or honesty; or (iv) been
charged, convicted or held liable for any offence
under the relevant securities laws in Hong Kong or
any other applicable laws or regulations in force from
time to time.

Lapse of Grant

In the event that a Selected Participant ceases to
be an Eligible Option Participant by reason of (i) if
he is an employee of the Company or any subsidiary
(“Employee”), redundancy, severance or dismissal
or because he has tendered his resignation; (ii) the
subsidiary by which such Selected Participant is
employed or contracted with (as the case may be)
ceases to be a subsidiary; and (iii) an order for the
winding up of the Company is made or a resolution is
passed for the voluntary winding up of the Company,
then such person will have ceased to be a Selected
Participant. The grant shall automatically lapse
forthwith and all the Grant Shares shall not vest on
the vesting date and the Selected Participant shall
have no claims against the Company or the Trustee.
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Termination

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the
earlier of (i) the expiry of the period of 10 years from
the Adoption Date of the Share Award Scheme, or (ii)
such date of early termination as determined by the
Board.

The maximum number of Grant Shares that can be
issued under the Share Award Scheme is 44,632,098.
As at the date of this report, no Grant Shares have
been issued pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

The details and other principal terms of the Share
Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 30 October 2014.

Information on the accounting policy for share options
and share awards is provided in note 2(q)(iii) to the
financial statements and details of the share based
payments is provided in note 27 to the financial
statements.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year
was the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.
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The directors of the Company during the Year and up
to the date of this report are:

Chairman

Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive
Director)

(appointed on 9 November 2015)

Executive Directors

Ms. Li Ting (Chief Executive
Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
Mr. Jason Boyer (resigned on 23 January 2015)
Mr. Brett McGonegal (resigned on 2 February 2016)
Mr. Chen Shengjie (resigned on 9 November 2015)
(
(

(appointed on 9 November 2015)

(appointed on 9 November 2015)

Mr. Tsoi Tong Hoo, Tony resigned on 9 November 2015)
Ms. Ko Wing Yan, Samantha resigned on 9 November 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Mr. Huang Youlong
Mr. Dorian M. Barak

(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(appointed on 9 November 2015)
(resigned on 9 November 2015)

Independent non-executive

Directors
Mr. Lin Lijun (appointed on 9 November 2015)
Mr. Qi Daging (appointed on 18 February 2016)

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

Mr. Liu Zhengui

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David BBS, JP
Mr. Ding Kebai (resigned on 23 January 2015)
In accordance with article 103(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson,
and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, BBS, JP shall retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

Pursuant to article 94 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Yu Feng, Ms. Li Ting, Mr. Huang Xin,
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou, Mr. Huang Youlong, Mr. Lin Lijun
and Mr. Qi Daging shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the Year and the Company
considers that they are independent.
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The names of directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Company (the
“subsidiaries”) during the year ended 31 December
2015 and up to the date of this report included: Ms. Li
Ting, Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, Mr. Chen Shengijie,
Mr. Brett McGonegal', Mr. Jason Boyer!, Mr. John
Maguire, Mr. Szeto Winston, Ms. Liao Yee Ching?,
Mr. He Shigiang? Mr. Chan Man Ko, Mr. Lo Ming Kit,
Mr. Wang Yanzheng? Ms. Qiao Chun Ping?, Mr. Uwe
Parpart', Mr. Bryan Zolad', Mr. Ainslie Bradford', Mr.
Ho Cecil Te-hwai', Mr. Jim Pak Keung, Patrick and
Mr. Anthony Wilson.

Note:

1. No longer directors of the Subsidiaries as at the date of
this report

2. Companies in which they serve as directors are

incorporated in places other than Hong Kong

None of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which requires the Company to give
a period of notice of more than one year, or to pay
compensation or make other payments equivalent to
more than one year’s emolument.

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short
positions of each Director and chief executive in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) under the Listing Rules, or known to
the Company, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
Company (“Shares”) and the underlying Shares:

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

BSR4 D B SR
EROREZTHEE 2

REQXREBER (TR DREBRO ZHFR :

Number of Shares held
FrERA A
Percentage
Long of

Name of Director

ESHSR

Nature of interests

EEME

position shareholding

"R FRES

Mr. Yu Feng (note 1)
B (M 1)

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (note 2)

BIRIESELE (Mt 2)

Mr. Brett McGonegal (hote 3)
Brett McGonegal 54 (47132 3)

Held by controlled corporation

HEEFEESR

Held by controlled corporation

HEEEEEEE

Beneficial owner

BREAA

1,342,976,000 55.97%
229,180,726 9.55%
10,410,914 0.43%

Note:

(1)  Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and non-executive
Director of the Company, was interested in 1,342,976,000
shares through Jade Passion Limited, a company which
is owned as to 73.21% of its issued share capital by Key
Imagination Limited. 68% of the issued share capital of
Key Imagination Limited is owned by Yunfeng Financial
Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which in turn,
is owned as to 60% by Mr. Yu Feng.

(2)  Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (“Mr. Ko”), an executive
Director of the Company, was interested in 229,180,726
shares through Gainhigh Holdings Limited (“Gainhigh”).
100% of the issued share capital of Gainhigh was held by
Insula Holdings Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Ko.

(3) Mr. Brett McGonegal resigned as Director on 2 February
2016.

Wi -

©)

AEBEIEREAQRAEBTEETER LS
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IR 17 7 # B # % > Key Imagination Limited
% A Jade Passion Limited® % 17 IR &x =~
7321% 0 EH S RIZER B R D T E BKey
Imagination Limited 2 #TR A 268% & ME
BRECHEERSRERERATAEHITRAEAZ
60% °

AAFBTESESRIELEE(SLEEDEB
Gainhigh Holdings Limited ([ Gainhighl)
74229,180, 726 R IR P B & » MInsula
Holdings Limited ( H & XX 2&E#HB)HFH
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 5=
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN 1
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND 3 R

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying

shares of associated corporations:

Name of Associated

Corporation Name of Director

Nature of Interests

RAEBEZERDREBERG ZFR

Number of Shares held in
Associated Corporation

REBEE RO 8B

Long position

Percentage of
shareholding

AR L ) & BB EEfE EaEME He EREDL
Yunfeng Financial Mr. Yu Feng Eeﬂeficial Owner 60 60%
Holdings Limited Rt BREBA
ERTRERERAAE
Key Imagination Limited Mr. Yu Feng Held by controlled 6,800 68%
E#EE corporation
(Note 1) HREEFEERS
(Kt 1)
Mr. Huang Xin Held by controlled 1,900 19%
BEAL corporation
(Note 2) HBREHEEEE
(Kizt2)
Jade Passion Limited Mr. Yu Feng Held by controlled 7,321 73.21%
B EE corporation
(Note 1) EETE?%J/&.;—IE
(Kt 1)
Mr. Huang Youlong Held by controlled 2,679 26.79%

BERELEE corporation
(Note 3) HREEFEERS
(Ka£ 3)
Notes: Bt :
(1)  Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and non-executive (1)

Director of the Company was interested in 6,800 shares,
representing 68% of equity interest in Key Imagination
through Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited,
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu Feng was
also interested in 7,321 shares, representing 73.21 % of
equity interest in Jade Passion Limited (“Jade Passion”)
through Key Imagination. Both Key Imagination and Jade
Passion are substantial shareholders of the Company.

(2)  Mr. Huang Xin, an executive Director of the Company, is )
the sole shareholder of Perfect Merit Limited which owns
1,900 shares, representing 19% of the equity interest in

Key Imagination.

REORIENT GROUP LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) Mr. Huang Youlong, a non-executive Director of the
Company, is the sole shareholder of Gold Ocean
Investments Group Inc., owns 2,679 shares, representing
26.79% equity interest in Jade Passion.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015,
none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates
had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and/ or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code adopted by the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above and in this report, in
particular in the section titled “Directors’ Interests
in Contracts” below, at no time during the Year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated
corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors (including their respective spouses and
children under the age of 18) to acquire benefits
by the means of the acquisition of the shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any of its associated corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had been
notified of the following substantial shareholders’
interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s total
issued shares under Section 336 of the SFO.

Report of the Directors
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Name of Substantial Shareholder

FERRHEA

Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1)

B (B 1)

Mr. Ma Yun (Note 1)

BEXEMFT)

Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited
(Note 1)

ERERMERERAR (1)

Key Imagination Limited (Note 1)

Key Imagination Limited (##zt 1)

Jade Passion Limited (Note 1)

Jade Passion Limited (#/2# 1)

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (Note 2)

= iRIE L (M 2)

Insula Holdings Limited (Note 2)

Insula Holdings Limited (##z£2)

Gainhigh Holdings Limited (Note 2)

Gainhigh Holdings Limited (#/z£2)

Ms. Lian Yi (Note 3)

B+ (fF3)

Clear Expert Limited (Note 3)

Clear Expert Limited (473#3)

Violet Passion Holdings Limited
(Note 3)

Violet Passion Holdings Limited

(BfZE3)

Notes:

Number of Shares held

FrEsRAEAR
Percentage
Long of
Nature of interests position shareholding
EEME ¥E ERESH
Held by controlled corporation 1,342,976,000 55.97%
HBZEFEERFE
Held by controlled corporation 1,342,976,000 55.97%
HRZESEERE
Held by controlled corporation 1,342,976,000 55.97%
HREHEESE
Held by controlled corporation 1,342,976,000 55.97%
HREFHEESA
Beneficial owner 1,342,976,000 55.97%
BEREEA
Held by controlled corporation 229,180,726 9.55%
R EFEEFE
Held by controlled corporation 229,180,726 9.55%
B EHEEFE
Beneficial owner 229,180,726 9.55%
EREBA
Held by controlled corporation 167,872,000 7.00%
HREHEESE
Held by controlled corporation 167,872,000 7.00%
HREFHEESE
Beneficial owner 167,872,000 7.00%

BREAA

Wiz :

1.

Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and a non-executive
Director of the Company, and Mr. Ma Yun were interested
in 1,342,976,000 shares through Jade Passion Limited,
a company which is owned as to 73.21% of its issued
share capital by Key Imagination Limited. 68% of the
issued share capital of Key Imagination Limited is owned
by Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited, the issued share
capital of which in turn, is owned as to 40% and 60% by
Mr. Ma Yun and Mr. Yu Feng, respectively.

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, an executive Director of the
Company, was interested in 229,180,726 shares through
Gainhigh. 100% of the issued share capital of Gainhigh
was held by Insula Holdings Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Ko.
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Notes: (Continued)

3. Ms. Lian Yi was interested in 167,872,000 shares
through Violet Passion Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Clear Expert Limited, which in turn is a
company wholly-owned by Ms. Lian Yi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015,
there were no other persons who had an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance (i) to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director or his connected entities was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the Year or at the end of
the Year, nor (ii) between the Company, or one of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.

During the Year, the Group did not have any
connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

During the Year, revenue derived from the Group’s
largest 5 customers accounted for approximately
79% of the total revenue for the Year, with the single
largest customer contributing approximately 30%.

BEE - ()
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The Group is a provider of financial services. In the
opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no value to
disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

Revenue from KuangChi Science Limited (“KuangChi”)
accounted for 24% of the Group’s total revenue
for the Year, a company which Mr. Ko Chun Shun,
Johnson, is a director and interested as to 4.52%
equity interest of its issued ordinary share capital as
at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares, had an interest in the major
customers.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the
Year amounted to HK$170,000 (2014: HK$235,000).

The Company is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices.
Information on the corporate governance practice of
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of the annual report.

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for
indemnity against liability incurred by directors and
executive officers of the Group is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Year.

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this report, there was
sufficient public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules.

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by KPMG who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised five independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung
Yue, Howard with Mr. Lin Lijun, Mr. Qi Daging, Mr.
Liu Zhengui, and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, BBS, JP
being the other members. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are in line with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. The Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

By order of the Board

Li Ting
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 February 2016
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(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of REORIENT GROUP LIMITED (“the company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on
pages 66 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the group as at 31 December 2015 and of the group’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

18 February 2016
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Revenue

Other operating income
Other net (loss)/income

Staff costs
Depreciation
Other operating expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Provision for impairment loss of
interest in an associate

Provision for impairment loss

Gain on disposal of an associate

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

(Loss)/profit attributable to non-
controlling interests

(Loss)/earnings per share
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Basic (HK$)

Diluted (HK$)

Note
et

g 3
Hip&E WA 4
Hit(&E), W= F8 5
=5 6(a)
e
HinREp 6(b)
R (EE), B8R
Rl E XA 6(c)
i N
REBEQATRSHREESEZ

BiE
REEEZRE 6(d)
HEBE QT 2 WG
BRBLAT(EB), R 6
Frigst 7
REE (FE), BRI
RATERFTE AEML

(B518) &R
IR EREML (BB,

gl
ADPRESFEA

EhsR(ER),

ZF|
BER(GET) 11(a)
(BT 11(b)

The notes on pages 73 to 167 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends declared
for the year are set out in note 26(d) to the financial

statements.
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2015
—E-F1EF
HK$’000
FET
193,967

3,475
(99,899)

97,543
(107,613)

(2,567)
(66,555)

(79,192)

(60)
567

(714)
(16,588)
18,118

(77,869)

(79,172)

(157,041)

(152,419)

(4,622)

(0.21)

(0.21)

2014

—E—-F

HK$’000
FET

133,370

2,585
920,486

1,056,441
(237,490)

(3,583)
(55,908)

759,460

(154)
(1,193)

1,214

759,327

(450)

758,877

758,856

21

1.73

1.73

ET3R167TEZ2MFAR AT HEIR/RR —

7 FREERZKRE

26(d) °

S 1 BB 15 3R



(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year

Iltem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on

translation of results of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to:
— equity shareholders of the Company
— non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 73 to 167 form part of these

financial statements.

EEE(ER) BT

REEHMEE WS

HEABHOBERTEZ
EE :

BEMNIEBREEEZ
B =5

FEERHBSAE

BAAARFEZERDALE :

— AREEEFBEA
— FFERER

2015
—E-F1EF
HK$’000
FET

(157,041)

(612)

(157,653)

(152,722)
(4,931)

(157,653)

2014
—E-EF
HK$’000
FET

758,877

(156)

758,721

758,776
(55)

758,721

732167 B 2 MEA R A # Rk — 340 o

T
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill and other intangible
assets

Interests in associates

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Accounts receivable and accrued
income

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Bank balance - trust and
segregated accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other
payables

Current taxation

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

Annual Report 2015

Note

o3
IRBEE
ME - BERRB 13
EENEMELEE

14
REE QT 2R 16
BAFEFTABREZ
tRERE 18
HidERBEE 17
FRBEEHRE
REBEE
BAFESTABEZ
EREE 18
FE U BR X e FERTURA

19
HihEWRIE - &Rk
AT FIE 20
BITEE — EERBI
BRE 21(a)
ReRRELEEIER 21(a)
RBEEHAE
REBEE
FEFBRFX 22
EstBR R MENFIE

23
EEABIE 25(a)
RBEEESE
RBEESRE
FRBEE
EEFIEEE 25(b)
BEFE

2015
—E-F1EF
HK$’000
FET

13,930

550

15,260

29,740

410,620
296,254
18,669

169,319
4,162,922

5,057,784

197,621

48,938
61,451

308,010

4,749,774

18,171

4,761,343

2014
—E—-F
HK$’000
FET

5,289

550
27,311

556,427
8,856

598,433

426,387
220,576
16,828

23,999
74,620

762,410

191,690

147,802
450

339,942

422,468

1,020,901



EQUITY

Share capital and other statutory
capital reserves
Other reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

i
RA R E A EEE A B
Ht &

IR

EREE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 18
February 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Ting
=y

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

BITEFRITHAE

The notes on pages 73 to 167 form part of these

financial statements.

Note
et

26(e)

REZB-AREZATN\HEESSHERER

2015
—E-F1EF
HK$’000
FET

4,499,548
260,759

4,760,307
1,036

4,761,343

TIE Wi T 5 REE -
Huang Xin
=S

SE73E167 B2 MEEAR AT EHREKR -0 -

2014
—E—-F
HK$’000
FET

614,919
400,015

1,014,934
5,967

1,020,901

Executive Director

BITEF

T
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Operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of interest in an
associate

Proceeds from partial disposal of an
associate

Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries,
net of cash

Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Interest received

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of shares
under share option scheme

Net proceeds from issuance of
subscription shares

Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1
January
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31
December

Note
it

mEEy

RETHRAZAEFE 21(b)
REED

R BEREE AR 2R
BRHERE AR ZFIENE

& — R DR 2 S E
SR AT AN AR S8
BEEZFIENE

IHBBHEAR  HKRES
XNBENE  BERER

XNBEREQAFEARRZ
TREE

HERAVERFABRRE 2SR
BEZFBRE

2 A E

15(c)

13

REZDMEEZHEFR

BMETE
RIBBREEBITRO 2P
BHIEFE
BITRBRO 2 FERIETFE

2R E

26(e)

RMETDREL RS FE

RERALESEERZEM/
(WD) R

R-—B-AZRERAELEME
EE
‘‘‘‘‘‘ BE2F

RT-ZRA=t—-HZRERR
&ZEEAE 21(a)

2015
—Z-1%
HK$°000
FET

(148,878)

40,978

(3,338)

(10,981)

(37,780)

365,938
674

355,491

3,679
3,878,682
(60)

3,882,301

4,088,914

74,620
(612)

4,162,922

2014
—E-mE
HK$°000
FET

(80,418)

(2,332)

8,118

(2,625)

1,200

4,361

39,901
(154)

39,747

(36,310)

111,086
(156)

74,620

T
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeRaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF+-_A=+—HIFE

Cash flow from operating activities REZEMELZHERE

includes: B
2015 2014
—E-%H& —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest received [=15:& 5=\ 94 230
The notes on pages 73 to 167 form part of these FET73F167 B 2B KA FE IR T — IR o

financial statements.

REORIENT GROUP LIMITED
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REORIENT GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong, the shares of which are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
registered office of the Company is Suites 3201-
3204, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place,
Central, Hong Kong. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) and the Group’s
interests in associates.

The principal activities of the Group are
securities broking, placing and underwriting,
provision of consultancy and advisory services
and investment holding. The principal activities
and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which
is the functional currency of the Company, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

HEREBERAB(EAATNDIIRESE
MR Z2ERAT  ERHOESBHE
EXGHERAT LT - AAT Z25EM
PBERNUREBTRELESSHRS
ES1E3201-3204E - BEZE-_ZE— &
F+ A=+ —-—HLEFEZHGEUER
REBFEADAREMB AR (LB RE
B RAEBAREE NT 2R -

AEEZITEEBRESEL BERK
B RHEBRBZARE  URKRE
ER HXEMBRARAZERRBRA
b IE R B I IRRMIEA5 -

REUBHRRUBTEN  BRITAAAR
REAZNEER  BREBEREN
BREEYUGEI 2 THUSIE -

(a) EHIEH

REMBHRRDIREBEMBERE B
BHREEA(WABEBEETES
B & P 28 45 2 BT B 1B A ME B & 08
PR EED - BEEFTENRR
BIREBAREHRAZHREM
e - APMBHRTHFEEEBQH
RBI2ERBRE o N BRI
SEBMERZMAERRIARS L
mARR(T EmRA ) 2 &A% EF
o AEEBRMN 2 EEZSTTBERM
EFIUT - AEERMN2EES
SABCRBEESH ST o

T

73



74

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except that the
following assets are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

— Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (see note 2(j))

— Derivative financial instruments (see
note 2(k))

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Annual Report 2015

(a)

(b)
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following
amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of
the Group:

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
— 2012 Cycle

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011
— 2013 Cycle

None of these developments have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the group
and other parties) are considered.

(b)

(c)

(d)

MBBRRZEREEE
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(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the
equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position depending on the nature of the
liability.
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(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(i)(i)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

(d)

(e)

o) PGV E S e 336
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(e)

Associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 2(i)(i)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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(e)

(f)

Associates (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill
Gooduwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(i).

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold Shorter of the
improvements unexpired term of
lease and 5 years

—  Office equipment 5 years
and furniture

— Computers and 3 — 5 years
software

Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually
by the Group.
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(h) Operating lease charges

(i)

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates, accounts
receivable and other receivables

Investments in subsidiaries, associates,
accounts receivable and other
receivables that are carried at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists,
any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries
and associates, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount in the
investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note
2(i)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note

2(i)(ii).
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(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates, accounts
receivable and other receivables

(Continueqd)
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For accounts receivable and
other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar
risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at each
reporting date to identify indications
that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

intangible assets; and
— goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there
is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)
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Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.
A reversal of impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured initially at fair
value, which normally will be equal to the
transaction price. Transaction costs are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss on the
date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, using trade
date accounting.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss comprise financial assets held for
trading and those designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition, but exclude those investments
in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried at fair value. Changes
in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.
Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or the net
payment and the carrying value is included
in the income statement.

The fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is based on their
quoted market prices at the end of reporting
period without any deduction for estimated
future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial
liabilities are priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded
price nor a quoted market price on a
recognised stock exchange or a price from
a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it
is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques
that provide a reliable estimate of prices
which could be obtained in actual market
transactions. The inputs of the valuation
techniques are based on market data.
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)

(k)

)

(m)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

A financial asset is derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or where the
financial asset together with substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, have
been transferred.

The Group uses the weighted average method
to determine realised gains and losses to
be recognised in the income statement on
derecognition.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables
are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(i)(i)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Intangible assets

The intangible assets that are acquired
by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).
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(m) Intangible assets (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives.

Intangible assets are not amortised while
their useful lives are assessed to be
indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for prospectively from the
date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables
are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash

at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks.
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() Employee benefits

(i)

(iii)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident
Funds as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

The fair value of share awards and
share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share-
based payment capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Black-Scholes
model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share
awards and options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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() Employee benefits (Continued)

(r)

(ili) (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share awards and share options that
are expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share awards and
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for
the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profit).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities are
those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each reporting date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised
when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is
recognised on a trade date basis when
the relevant transactions are executed.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Handling and settlement fee income,
placing and underwriting commission
income and consultancy and advisory
fee income

Handling and settlement fee income,
placing and underwriting commission
income and consultancy and advisory
fee income are recognised when the
related services are rendered.
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(t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Consultancy and advisory fee settled
with non-cash consideration

Consultancy and advisory fee settled
with non-cash transaction is recognised
at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, which
represents the transaction price of such
consideration as initially determined.
When the outcome of the transaction
involving the rendering of services
can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction shall be
recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the transaction at the
end of the reporting period.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

Exchange differences relating to investments
at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments are included
in gains less losses from trading securities
or financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss.
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(uy Translation of foreign currencies

(v)

(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Items of statement of financial
position, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the income
statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group maintains segregated accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’
monies arising from its normal course
of the regulated business activities. The
Group has classified the bank balances —
trust and segregated accounts within the
current assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to
respective clients and other institutions on
the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies.

The Group is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.
The cash held on behalf of customers is
restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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(w) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(1)

@)

(3)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(1)
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The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third party.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(i).
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continueqd)

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a
person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts
of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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The principal activities of the Group are AEBECETEERARSLL BHER

securities broking, placing and underwriting, B RUBRBRBARE URKRE
provision of consultancy and advisory services AR o

and investment holding.

Revenue represents the gross amount recognised KFEFACHER BT AEERK
during the year. An analysis of the Group’s FEZWESAMT :

revenue for the year is as follows:

2015 2014

—B—FE —EB-—MNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Brokerage commission RELEMAE 10,965 24,350
Consultancy and advisory fees BERRZEAE 182,908 105,710
Placing and underwriting commission BERkEHEEE - 3,080
Interest income from clients REEZEFZFEWA 94 230
193,967 133,370

2015 2014

—E-hF —E-MF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Handling and settlement fees FEEREEER 811 1,050
Other interest income HAuF S U A 1,356 1,200
Research fee mREHR 1,245 335
Miscellaneous income HMEWA 63 =
3,475 2,585
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Net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss
— Convertible preferred shares
— Options
— Equity investment listed outside

Hong Kong
— Equity investment listed in Hong
Kong

Net realised gain/(loss) on financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss
— Equity investment listed outside

Hong Kong
— Equity investment listed in Hong
Kong

Total other net (loss)/income

BAFEABSEZERERE
AERWE(BE) B8
—ABRRELR
—BRE
—ERBBRIILETRERE

—ERBLTRERE

BAFEABSEZERERE
ERBRWE(BR)FHE

—BRBRIILETRERE

—ERBLETmRERE

Hit (B518) Wik Faast

2015
—E-HE
HK$’000
FET

13,322
19,435

195,238

227,995

157

(328,051)
(327,894)

(99,899)

2014
—E-IF
HK$’000
FET

555,997
(1,357)

365,846

920,486

920,486

T
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(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after

charging:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Staff costs

Commission paid

Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses (note 27)

Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind (note 23)

Contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund

Other operating expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
Legal and professional costs
Operating lease payments —
property rentals
Information, data and
communication expenses
Provision for impairment loss of
accounts receivable
Net exchange loss
Entertainment and travelling

Finance costs

Interest expense on bank loans
and overdrafts

Others

(a)

(b)

(c)

Provision for impairment loss of (d)

— goodwill
— other receivables
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T
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2015

—B-RfF
HK$’000

FET

1,312
15,734
89,687

880

107,613

1,385
7,282

11,822
16,430
389

1,277
5,652

60

3,484
13,104

16,588

BRBiAT (E18), "R REHIBRTHI&IE

2014
—ZT-mF
HK$’000
FBT
111
18,478
217,987

914

237,490

1,200
6,445

6,496
14,574
2,095

295
11,076

21
133
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(@) Taxation in the consolidated

statement represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits
Tax

Provision for the year

Under-provision in respect of prior
years

Total tax charge for the year

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Total tax charge for the year

income (a)

EMBE — BBAEH

REERE
BEFERBIE

REEHRIA HAER
LB R
EEREBO o ERFEER

NEEHR AR AR

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for
2015 is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is
charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

AWK ZBIARE

2015

S
HK$°000
FHAT

60,849

152

61,001

18,171

79,172

2014
—ZT-mF
HK$’000
FBT

450

450

450

R-ZB-EFFBANEHR 2BEU
KEE 2HFTERBEFNZ16.5%
(ZZE—MFE: 16.5%)5E « FH
M E TR BB X RRG 2
B RS R RN E o

T
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BIEMXHEZBABREITEZES

accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax (E18),/BF 2k :
rates:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B51B) RF (77,869) 759,327

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before  ZIEBIRIR 2 & A Bt

taxation, calculated at the rates HoBRBAI(EBE),E5F

applicable to the countries ZEEHIE

concerned (13,776) 125,289
Tax effect of non-deductible ENCIEIE 18 32

expenses 58,895 1,148
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  BEHKH WA 2HIFS & (9,511) (92,040)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses Al & KBRS B AR IE

previously not recognised EBEHEEE (1,599) (34,223)
Tax effect of tax losses not REAREEB BB

recognised e 1,115 -
Under-provision in prior years BEFERERTR 152 =
Others (note) HAh(prat) 43,896 276
Actual tax expense ERFENS 79,172 450
Note: /‘(ﬁﬁir :
The balance for the year ended 31 December 2015 RNEBE_E—HRE+-_BA=+—BH1Lt=E
comprised a tax provision of HK$43,744,000 in EzEBBEESBEIEEWEESLE
respect of realised gains from an investment which BEAKRESB NI EB2HERE
was considered as capital in nature in prior years. 43,744,00035 7T o BRI H 150 i
The gains were designated as trading receipts MRARFEHEIEEBZSEIWA

in the current reporting period due to change in
circumstances.
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Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulations are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances
Directors’  and benefits
fees in kind
O gpomp
Ezh BiEA
HKS'000  HKS'000
7 &1
Chairman g
Yu Feng (note | Bt - -
Executive directors UiEs
Jason Boyer (note v) Jason Boyer(#/ztv) - -
Chen Shengjie (note vi REA M) 243 -
Huang Xin (note i ER (i) - -
Ko Chun Shun, Johnson i 285 -
Ko Wing Yan, Samantha (note v n;ﬁﬁkf/ffﬁw) 243 -
Li Ting (note i) (L) - 2,187
Brett McGonegal (note ix) Brett McGone?aI (Hitir) 5,030 -
Tsoi Tong Hoo, Tony (note vi) ~ ERZ (K 243 -
Non-executive directors Fufgs
Dorian M. Barak (note vii Donan M. Barak (42 vii) 243 12
Hai Olivia Ou (note ii Wi - -
Huang Youlong (note i ;ﬁﬁ g -
Independent non-executive ~ BUAHTEZ
directors
Chu Chung Yue, Howard 7T 330 17
Ding Kebai (note v TRBWvi) 15 1
Lin Lijun (note iy) WRE iz 3 2
Qi Daging (note ) ErB(KY) - -
Liu Zhengui e 285 14
Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David EREHL 25 14
Total sz 8,137 2,41
Notes:
i Appointed as chairman and non-executive director
on 9 November 2015.
ii Appointed as executive director on 9 November
2015.
iii Appointed as non-executive director on 9 November
2015.
iv Appointed as independent non-executive director on
9 November 2015.
\Y Resigned as executive director on 23 January 2015.
W Resigned as executive director on 9 November 2015.
vii Resigned as non-executive director on 9 November
2015.
viii  Resigned as independent non-executive director on
23 January 2015.
ix Resigned as executive director on 2 February 2016.
X Appointed as non-exective director on 18 February
2016.
Xi All directors are not entitled to share awards or
share options as set out in note 2(q)(iii)-
Xii Represents the discretionary bonus accrued in 2014,

which were allocated and paid during the year of
2015.

RIBE B 2 B R BISE 383(1) fR & A &) (]
BESANDERROAE2MREZES

MEumT :
2015
~%-1f
Contributions

Discretionary  to Mandatory Share-based

honus Provident payments
Tgote Xi) Fund Sub-total (note xi) Total
BERRD  msk | uphaER )
Witni)  DBEMR Nt 2R it
HK$'90(_) HK$'000 HK$’OOQ HK$'000 HK§000
&1 &L 7T & &
- 12 255 - 255
26,687 14 26,986 - 26,986
- 12 255 - 255
- 8 2,195 - 2,195
26,027 18 31,975 - 31,975
- 12 255 - 255
255 - 255
- - 347 - 47
- - 16 - 16
- - 3 - 3
- - 299 - 299
- - 299 - 299
54,714 76 65,174 - 65,174

g3

Vi
vii

viii

Xi

Xii

R-ZB—AF+-BhBAEZEELEEER
3!54*&}11?%% °
R-E-FAFE+-AhBAEZEEHTE

—HEFEt-AABEZEEARFHT

55.

R==Z— EEL$+ ANEREERBUFE
BiTE

gig £¢ A-t=B®EHT
R==— $+ BALEBREHTES -
gig AE+-BNBBEFRATE
REZE-FF-A-+=HEBEBIEY
TES -
REZE-—A"FE-_F_HREHTES -
gég—/—\iiﬂﬁ-)\ﬁﬁééﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁ
2 ME B EEZ A M 2(q)(i) TEZR
R —Z-—OERF - R=F-HF0K
KRB PETEAL -

T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ke
MR EME
8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 E=EMEE)
2014
ZE-IE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Mandatory
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Provident Share-based
fees in kind bonus Fund Sub-total payments Total
B 2R B | BhaEE )
EEL ik EOEA BEBMRL DESE Nt PAE )
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§:000
Fér Fér Fér Fér FEr F&r Fér
Chairman ig
Ko Chun Shun, Johnson SHRE 240 - - 12 252 - 252
Executive directors #irge
Jason Boyer Jason Boyer - 2,800 3,100 17 5917 - 5917
Chen Shengjie REA 240 - - 12 252 - 252
Ko Wing Yan, Samantha BEM 20 - - 12 252 = 252
Brett McGonegal Brett McGonegal - 5,967 2,500 17 8,484 - 8,484
Tsoi Tong Hoo, Tony gz 240 - - 12 252 - 252
Non-executive director FUTES
Dorian M. Barak Dorian M. Barak 230 12 - - 242 - 42
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHAES
directors
Chu Chung Yue, Howard p 240 12 - - 252 = 252
Ding Kebai T=A 240 12 - - 252 - 252
Liu Zhengui 8mE 20 12 - - 252 - 252
Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David ERERL 240 12 - - 252 - 252
Total a3t 2,150 8,827 5,600 8 16,659 - 16,659

REORIENT GROUP LIMITED
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Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments (excluding the discretionary bonus
accrued in 2014, which were allocated and paid
during the year of 2015), one (2014: two) is a
director whose emoluments are disclosed in note
8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect
of the other four (2014: three) individuals are as
follows:

AEBEH(TEER -2 MERH
RoB-—REHERE SN NBBHIED)
ALES —Z(—E—NE: ME)E
E ML HBERKES - BERHEE
(CB-—mE: =Z) At 2MeBEn
T:

2015 2014
—E-8F —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EMREYER
kind 14,378 10,858
Discretionary bonus (note 1) BB IEAL (Bt 1) - —
Equity-settled share-based payment  RELELRM AER 2
expenses B3 26,644 15,388
Contributions to Mandatory Provident @& A S HR
Fund 57 51
41,079 26,297
Note 1 Bonus accrued in 2015 has not been allocated Kiat 1 CE-RFEZRFRAMKRDET
to individuals. @RIAZL °

The emoluments (excluding the discretionary
bonus accrued in 2014, which were allocated and
paid during the year of 2015) of the five (2014:
five) individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following bands:

FEREH(FRER-FT-NF Rt
REZ2-AFPERIANEBEIEAL)
AX(ZZ2-—OF: AR)ZMEER
TEE :

Number of individuals

EEAY

2015 2014

—g-1%f  —F-QmF

HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 # 7T £ 6,000,000 /& T 1 2
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7T £ 7,500,000 /8 7T 1 =
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 7T £ 8,500,000 & 7T - 2
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 T £ 9,500,000 /& 7T 1 =
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 %t £ 12,000,000 % T 1 =
HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000 12,000,001 &t £ 12,500,000 % T - 1
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 & jt & 13,500,000 /& T 1 =

S



ARARBEFAEARGGESENEE
@ #33,068,000% T(= & — M@ F :

The consolidated profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a profit of

HK$33,068,000 (2014: HK$22,726,000) which has 22,726,0008 T ) » E R AR T B &R
been dealt with in the financial statements of the RANEI o

Company.

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a) BREXR(EER) ER

BRERER) BIDEREZE
—E-HEF+ZA=+—HLHF
EZARARAREREEAEGLER
152,419,000/ 8 T(ZE— N F : &
F758,856,000/8 T ) R BE =&
—HAF+A=+—HILFERAS
TR ZMEFHEINBREBR G R
BEEIEE 2R % % 733,062,612

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings
per share is based on the loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015
of HK$152,419,000 (2014: a profit of
HK$758,856,000), and the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2015 of 733,062,612

106

(2014: 438,209,142). B (=2 — 04 : 438,209,142 1% ) 5+
o
Weighted average number of ordinary EERINEF T
shares
2015 2014
—E-EF —E-UF
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M— B —HB2ZEBRTEBER 455,651,221 411,494,527
Effect of issue of shares under RIBAR 1D B 155 R AT AR 1
share swap agreement B ([T 26(e) (i)
(note 26(e)() - 8,585,511
Effect of issue of shares under RIBBRETEEBITRG
share option scheme (note 26(e)(iii) SLE (HfaE 26(e)(iii)) 502,818 —
Effect of issue of subscription BITRERO2EE
shares (note 26(e)(ii)) (K13 26(e)(ii)) 276,908,573 11,354,378
Effect of vested shares under share $E?F§§HX*E*+§JEE B
option scheme (note 26(e)(iii)) 2 S B (H1EE 26(e)(iii)) - 6,774,726
Weighted average number of R+t=—A=+—H2Z
ordinary shares at 31 December EiERMETIIE 733,062,612 438,209,142
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(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings
per share is based on the loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015
of HK$152,419,000 (2014: a profit of
HK$758,856,000), and the weighted average
number of shares during the year ended
31 December 2015 of 733,062,612 (2014:
438,250,077).

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

Effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company’s share option
scheme (note 27(a))

JR DN HE S 39 8L
FTEIBITRG
(K7t 27(a))

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (diluted) at 31
December

(b)

RTtZR=t—HZEE

BAERBEAD T 2 BRE
s/

BV

RTt-ZA=t—HZEE
IR InFE P39 B (#58)

SRE®FEF(BE)

BREEER) BADREZE
—E-RAF+ZB=+-—-HLE
E2ARAEZEEAELER
152,419,000/8 (= & — g F :
B 758,856,000 T ) kK & =
—E-AF+ZA=+—HLHF
ERC TR MG 2 &R I
BRERORBFEZTEZRNE
£5733,062,612K (=& — @ F :
438,250,077 R)&TE -

EERMEFIE (4E)
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-F
733,062,612 438,209,142
- 40,935
733,062,612 438,250,077

T
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The operating segments have been determined
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other operating segments.
The Group currently has three operating
segments:

(i) Securities brokerage,
(i) Securities placing and underwriting, and
(iii) Consultancy and advisory services.

The accounting policies and the basis of
segmentation of the reportable segments are the
same as those followed by the Group in the last
annual financial statements.

Segment revenue represents the revenue
generated by each operating segment from
external customers. Inter-segment revenue
represents inter-segment services which
were transacted with reference to the normal
commercial price made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

Segment results represent specific operating
performance of the reported segments by
allocating all specific and related operating costs,
excluding other corporate, general administrative,
and financial expenses, taxation and non-
operating costs. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision-maker, at the
relevant times, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Annual Report 2015

REDBIORBARXANTESHEH
I PR Y fh R IR % AF H SR ORTE 2 3]
EMEE -  AEBZEEEBHREH
ERMERREMEZE R R R E 5 E
THERER AEESEEIRPRE
—ERBEEBEN  BRZEGRR
% PR ASE 2 BB K A 15 2 [B] 3R S8 AL 4l 4K
EoMIE - AEERBE=ZHLEED
B Bl

(i) BHLKL
iy BHFEEREHE K
(i) FERRFBAREE

AHRED W2 EAHER D BEEER
SERELFEMBREZAEBEARR o

DHMBRAEZEEsMANMBEFEL
ZWA > 2 EMEWRAESRIZERHE
ME=FEHZ - REXEEMETR
5 20 EBE AR o

PHEERERINEBIERFIBERE
REBEERAAR(TEERMLLT » — R
TR BB - BIERIFFLEERA) T
BEeRELERE  WDRAEREE
BTFEELERREFERIBERRR
AL AR EEEE -



(a) Segment revenue and results (a) 7EBWMAREE

2015
—E-If
Consultancy
Securities and
Securities  placing and advisory
brokerage underwriting services Total
BEMER BRER
BHEL e BHRE @it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FE FET
Revenue from external parties RESMBA L ZWA 10,965 - 182,908 193,873
Interest income from clients REEFZFEBA 94 - - 9%
Allocated other operating EAREMEERA
income 2,119 - - 2,119
Allocated operating costs B R E KA (44,663) (7,111) (40,934) (92,708)
Allocated finance costs EPRBERR (47) (5) - (52)
Reportable segment (loss)/ A& A (&) EF
profit (31,532) (7,116) 141,974 103,326
Unallocated other operating K2 B EAE=Z M A
income 1,356
Net loss on financial assets R AFETABGEZ
at fair value through profit ~ £REEZEIEFE
or loss (99,899)
Share of results of associates JE{LH& A B %& 567
Gain on disposal of an HEHE AR W
associate 18,118
Provision for impairment loss FABE 1\ R FEE R
of interest in an associate e (714)
Provision for impairment loss HftEWETREFE2
of other receivables L] (13,104)
Provision for impairment loss BEHEFEEE
of goodwill (3,484)
Depreciation e (2,567)
Finance costs FE AR )
Legal and professional EEREXER
expenses (5,717)
Taxation B (79,172)
Other central administrative ~ b RITHEE KA
costs (75,743)
Loss for the year rEERE (157,041)

—z-mgEg 09
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Revenue from external parties 3 ESMBA £ 2 A

Interest income from clients REEFZFEBA

Allocated other operating EAREMEERA
income

Allocated operating costs B R SE KA

Allocated finance costs B EEERA

fe=]]

Reportable segment (loss)/ BEDW(EE)HF
profit

Unallocated other operating A7 B E A=A
income

Net gain on financial assets R AFEFABHE 2 &R
at fair value through profit ~ BEZR# F4E
or loss

Gain on partial disposal of an Z{HEBE A F 2 WH
associate

Share of results of associates FE{REEE A T %E

Depreciation e

Finance costs AMERA

Legal and professional EERBXER
expenses

Taxation BE

Other central administrative ~ Eftip RITHEEH AR
costs

Profit for the year REEHR

Annual Report 2015

Securities
brokerage

FHERL
HK’000
FET

24,350
230

1,385

(66,941)
(11)

(40,987)

(a) P EBRARKE(F)

2014
—E-mF

Securities  Consultancy

placing and  and advisory
underwriting services Total

EHEMER BRIR

B w3 PR s

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

3,080 105,710 133,140
= = 230

1,385

(9,70_2) (43,1 1_9) (119,762)
(1) - (12)

(6,623) 62,591 14,981

1,200

920,486
1,214
(1,199)
(3,583)
(142)

(4,784)
(450)

(168,852)

758,877



(b)

(c)

(d)

Segment assets and liabilities

As the assets and liabilities are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the
Company as a whole, the measure of total
assets and liabilities by operating segment
is therefore not presented.

Geographical segment information

The Group’s customers, operation and
administration are mainly located in Hong
Kong. The business activities of the Group’s
associates are mainly located in the
Republic of Korea and the United States.

Information about major customers
Operating Segment
ReE D E
Customer A Consultancy and advisory
BEFA DN EE
Customer B Consultancy and advisory
=FB BAR K
Customer C Consultancy and advisory
EFC BAR K A+

U The transactions with this customer did not
account for more than 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

(b) PHMEERAE

HRARAHTESTENEREN
EENEE AUHIE2IREE
DHE D 2REERAEGEEER

2% o
(c) WESIPER
AEBEF  ¥BRITHEEE

BURER - AREBREQF 2%
BEBHTEVRABRRENREE -

(d FRXEEFZEHR

Revenue from
major customers

REFEEFZWA
2015 2014
—E-RE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
58,100 N/A!
TER
36,304 17,850
26,945 24,925

1 WEFTEETRELHAER
BE-Z—NE+ZA=1+—
BIEFEZHBWBA10% L E -

T
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Notes to the Financial Statements
M IR R RE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ - BERRE

112

Office
Leasehold equipment Computers Motor
improvements  and furniture  and software vehicles Total
HENERE WORBEREM ERREH RE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TEr Tér FiEx &7 TEr
Cost AR
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-F-H 6,802 3,101 3,538 - 13,441
Additions RE 325 1,057 1,243 - 2,625
At 31 December 2014 R-B-WE+=R
o EeR nier a8 oL - 16,066
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-A-H 7,127 4,158 4,781 - 16,066
Additions wE 5,331 1,252 3,916 726 11,225
Disposals e (5,391) - - - (5,391)
At 31 December 2015 ~ R=Z-F&E+=f
[ =8 e o 8697 . 21,900
Accumulated depreciation 23HTE
At 1 January 2014 R=Z-mE-A-H 4,168 1,400 1,626 - 7,194
Charge for the year KEEYH 2,034 4 808 = 3,583
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-ME+=R
=1+-H 6,202 2,141 2,434 - 10,777
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-F-H 6,202 2,141 2,434 - 10,777
Charge for the year REELH 705 833 989 40 2,567
Written back on disposals i & isH (5,374) - - - (5,374)
At 31 December 2015 ~ R=ZE-H%E+=R
Sr=[d 1,533 2,974 3,423 40 1,970
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2015 ~ W-E-Ef+=f
=t-H 5,534 2,436 5,274 686 13,930
At 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+=H
=1+-H 925 2,017 2,347 - 5,289

REORIENT GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015



(a)

Goodwill

Cost FR A

At 1 January W—HB—H
Additions wNE

At 31 December R+=A=+—8~H
Impairment loss WAEE 1B

At 1 January and 31 December

=+-8

Carrying amount REE
At 31 December

The impairment loss recognised during the
year relates to the Group’s newly acquired
subsidiaries, Cannon Investment Advisors
(HK) Limited and Shenzhen Ruifu Technology
Limited. The recoverable amounts of these
subsidiaries were based on their value
in use, determined by discounting the
future cash flows to be generated from the
continuing use. Management consider that
it is uncertain for these entities to generate
future cashflows. Therefore, the carrying
amount was determined to be higher than its
recoverable amount and an impairment loss
of HK$3,484,000 was made during 2015.
The impairment loss was fully allocated to
goodwill.

R—B—BEt+=A

BW+=RA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RE —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,484 =
3,484 =
(3,484) =

FABRRTZBREBBEIDERAE
& B Wi~ M B 2 8 Cannon
Investment Advisors (HK)
Limited X Shenzhen Ruifu
Technology Limited ° % % [ B
’REZEJLI&IEIQ%EEB:@FHE{E?

 MEFERAEBEIDREBRSER
ﬁﬁﬁ%iz**iﬁfumg?éf_i°
EIEEWLI ’ EZ%E-E QEEEI_:E*
RIBVESREW TEHE o Lk 2H
EHRABESRETWE S @ It
RZ-Z—HF 3,484,000 T
ggi‘éﬁ% o IWREEBIECD ZEEA

T
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(b) Other intangible assets (b) HMEREE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Trading right, at cost/valuation RBHE ﬁEZIK/TME
At 1 January R—B— 6,550 6,550
Additions nE - =
At 31 December Rt+t=-—HB=+—H 6,550 6,550
Accumulated amortisation and EFT 8 RRE
impairment
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HET=A
=+—H (6,000) (6,000)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December Rt+t=-—H=+—H 550 550
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had R-ZBE-—HE+=ZA=+—81"
three (2014: three) trading rights in The ZK%IEAE,% BEXSHMERAD
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the A EE=ZBE(=Z&—
“Stock Exchange”) and one (2014: one) F . ZEA)XZERRBEBHER
trading right in the Hong Kong Futures SHERATR(THRFDEES—#
Exchange Limited (the “Futures Exchange”), (ZZ2—MUE: —@)XEZ#E Hb
of which two trading rights in the Stock }3’\ R FT 2 B R 5 R A H R
Exchange and one trading right in the Z—AXZEECNR-_E—FTFE+=
Futures Exchange were fully amortised as at B=+—B &8s -

31 December 2010.
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(a)

Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the

Group

Name of company

AGIES

Cannon Investment Advisors
(HK) Limited

Fast Capital Holdings Limited

EEERERAR

REORIENT Capital Markets
Limited

HREATZERAT

REORIENT Finance Limited
BREFMBRAT

REORIENT Financial
Markets Limited

HREBTERRAT

REORIENT Global Limited
RRERERAF

REORIENT Holdings Limited
HRERERAR

REORIENT Share Award
Scheme Nominee Limited

HRBRORBHARZARR

C!

Place of
incorporation
and business
TE LR
BEhY
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
£

Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

%

i

(a) TEWEEEMERRAEZHE
AR

Proportion of ownership interest

Particular of
issued and fully ~ Group’s
paid-up capital  effective
(note) interest
BRTRAR REEZ
BRAFEME)  BRER
3,910,000 shares 100%
3,910,000 R 4
10,000 shares 100%
10,000 R 47
5,000,000 shares 100%
5,000,000 & R 43
1 share 100%
1RR%
125,000,000 100%
shares
125,000,000 B
R
1 share 100%
1R
1 share 100%
1RRHD
1,000 shares 100%

1,000 R {3

BEERELA

Held
by the Held by a
Company subsidiary
HALH mKE
BE DEARE
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
100% -
- 100%
100% -
100% -
100% -

Principal activities
TEER

Provision of assets
management services

REEEEERS

Investment holding

REER
Securities broking
BHEL

Money lending
L6

Securities broking,
securities placing
and underwriting, and
provision of consultancy
and advisory services
BHEE  EHRERBHN
R HRER R AARS

Provision of administrative
services

RETHRY

Investment holding

REER

Administering and holding
the Company’s shares for
the Share Award Scheme

ARORETAEERBEE
RERS

T
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(a)

Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the

Group (Continued)

Name of company
NRER

REORIENT Financial Markets
(USA) LLC

Reorient Strategic Limited

Profit Trigger Limited

&l

THoip

BRAT

all

REORIENT Asset
Management Limited

Wise Points Holdings Limited

Beijing Chengtong
REORIENT Investment
Consultancy Limited

TRHBRRREERER

1E

Beijing REORIENT Universal
Investment Consultancy
Limited

IRHERERREEH
BRAF

Annual Report 2015

Place of
incorporation
and business
B L R
LEhY

British Virgin
Islands

ABELHE

British Virgin
Islands

ABELHE

British Virgin
Islands

ABRLHE

British Virgin
Islands

ABRUHE

PRC

(a)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRRERLA

Particular of
issued and fully
paid-up capital
(note)
BRITRARE
Rz ()

Held
by the Held by a
Company subsidiary
RN miE
BE DEABE

Group’s
effective
interest
REEZ
ERER

550,000 shares of
US$1 each
550,000 R R E

ERE Ao i

100% 100%

1 share of US$1 100%
each

1REREE1X
2R

100% =

1 share of US$1
each

1REREEIE
A i)

100% 100% =

1 share of US$1 100% - 100%
gach

1REBREEIX
TR

1 share of US$1
each

1REREE1X
2R

100% 100% =

10,000,000 51%
shares of RMB
1 each
10,000,000 R &R
AEARBIT
ZRA

51% =

1,000,000 shares 100%

of RMB 1 each

100% =

1,000,000 k&1
HEAREIT
2Rt

FEXELEEREREECHE

DEFHE(HE)

Principal activities
TEXH
Securities broking

BHEL

Investment holding

REER

Holding of brands and
trademarks

REmBRER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
RELR
Investment management,

consulting and advisory
services

REEHE  BARE
AR%

Investment consulting and
advisory services

REBBRAARE



(a)

Details of the subsidiaries principally (a) FEFELFEXEREEZHE
affected the results and assets of the AEFHBEE)
Group (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

REEREILA
Particular of
Place of issued and fully  Group’s
incorporation  paid-up capital  effective
Name of company and business  (note) interest Company subsidiary Principal activities

MR ERTRAE AEEZ
NEER Bew Rawt(fz)  BBRER

Shenzhen Ruifu Technology  PRC 500,000 shares of 100%
Limited RMB 1 each

A mRENRERLT E 500,000 RERE
BEAR®1Z
R

Note: The class of shares held is ordinary shares
unless otherwise stated.

NARE IRER

100% Technological development

of computer software

and hardware, technical

consulting, technology

services, database

and computer network

services
ERBHREG 2 HIRE

RER  HiliRS - 88

ERERE KRS

BREABAN - RO ZER D

HER -

T
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Information about material non-controlling

interest

The following table lists out the information
relating to Beijing Chengtong Reorient
Investment Consultancy Limited, the
only subsidiary of the Group which has
material non-controlling interest (NCI). The
summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any

inter-company elimination.

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year
Total comprehensive income
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividend paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Annual Report 2015

FEREZEDL
RBEE
FRBEE
RBEE
FRBEE
BEERE

RIS 2 BREE

Wz
AEE(EE),EF
el €t
DEEFERERZ
(&#8),aF

(b) EBEAFEZEREZZEFR

TREIBFALFAHBRRIRERE
BARQA(E-——BAEEES
EXRFEREZHWBLAR) &
B T2 M BERBMAE
AR EMEER 2 E5E -

2015
—E-RE
HK$’000
FET

49%
2,159
3
(13)
2,149
1,036

(9Aé;)
(112)

(4,622)

XN THERBR ZRE -

EREFHIRLRE
REZHRERE
MEED2RLRE

(2,660)
20

2014
—E-IF
HK$’000
FET

49%
12,339
8
(133)
12,214
5,967

183
42
(112)

21

2,177)
857



(c)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 22 November 2015, Beijing Reorient
Universal Investment Consultancy Limited
(ERHRRRREZHAHERDLEF), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
100% interest in Shenzhen Ruifu Technology
Limited (“SZ Ruifu”) for a consideration of
approximately HK$986,000. SZ Ruifu is a
company which involved in the technological
development of computer software and
hardware, technical consulting, technology
services, database and computer network
services. The goodwill of HK$1,126,000
arising from the acquisition is attributable to
technical know-how, database and human
resources.

On 9 November 2015, Wise Point Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 100% interest in Cannon
Investment Advisors (HK) Limited (“Cannon”)
for a consideration of approximately
HK$2,764,000. Cannon is an investment
management company with SFC type 9
license. The goodwill of HK$2,358,000
arising from the acquisition is attributable
to the responsible officers who possess
SFC license Type 9 for developing asset
management business.

None of the goodwill recognised from these
acquisitions is expected to be deductible for
income tax purpose.

The goodwill was fully impaired during
the Year as set out in note 14(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table summarises the
consideration paid for SZ Ruifu and Cannon,
the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities
assumed and goodwill at the acquisition
date.

(c)

W B B R 2 F

RZE—HF+—ABA=Z+=H i
AHERRREEZHAER QT (X
AAIZEZEWB LT ) WE RIS
HEERMFAERQAA(GRIBE Dz
100% = - KB % 5 986,00078
o FIREELA —RSEEKE M
REH MR - HrEERE - &
MR - BEEREMAERE 2
AaEl o W EE 221,126,000
BANEERREMARE  BEER
ADER -

R-ZE—HRFE+—B B  Wise
Point Holdings Limited (4% 2 7]
ZZ2EMK B QR ) U ECannon
Investment Advisors (HK) Limited
(TCannonl) 2100% # &% * K &
#%2,764,00078 7T ° Cannon &%
EEEQNT BFEREEFOHEE
BB BB E 4L 2 B # 2,358,000 8
TNBEEREREEEEER LR
EREEFIEEBZABEAE -

—_ =

AHNMECMNEIBZERNEZH
BAMEHRT SR 2 A o

M-S BEHRERMT14(@) FTEE
EBERERATERME -

T &R 5% I B E K Cannon2
TRE - FTKEBEE - FTREERE
REERWEBEBZLAFE-

T
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(c) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (c) WEBKMEAR(E)

SZ Ruifu Cannon Total
NS Cannon st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FHET FHET
Consideration: RE:
At acquisition U B B
Total consideration — BRE-BRE
cash 986 2,764 3,750
Recognised amounts ARBEWBEER
of identifiable assets EREAEZCER
acquired and liabilities &5
assumed
Property, plant and ME - BEREE
equipment 219 25 244
Cash and cash equivalents & RIREZEEE 19 393 412
Other receivables, deposits EfttfEUFIE -~ &
and prepayments REMARIE 110 17 127
Accrued expenses and FESTRASR R H AT
other payables B (488) (29) (517)
Total identifiable net AEB(BE) EE
(liabilities)/assets AR (140) 406 266
Goodwill S 1,126 2,358 3,484
986 2,764 3,750
Consideration RE 986 2,764 3,750
Less: cash and cash o PR EE BT R
equivalent of the ZReRBEEEE
subsidiaries acquired EHH (19) (393) (412)
Net consideration paid B RXESEE 967 2,371 3,338
SZ Ruifu and Cannon did not generate any SR YI| 3% = & Cannon b 4 & 4 {F 1
revenue and contributed losses totalling W BARHEWE>R K
HK$2,225,000 since their respective 5B 2,225,000 3 7T o
acquisition dates.
Had SZ Ruifu and Cannon been consolidated HEYIEER CannonR—E—F
from 1 January 2015, the consolidated E—A—BESAANE SA%
income statement would show revenue of 4 7 R Uk 3% 193,967,00058 T &
HK$193,967,000 and loss of HK$157,768,000. K518 157,768,000 8 7t o
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Share of net assets
Goodwill ]

Less: provision for impairment loss of i : — BB
interest in an associate BEEERE

During 2015, a petition was filed against ReOil,
LLC (“ReOil”) for breach of contract. Management
believes that ReOil was unlikely to be able to pay
the damages and has ceased operations since
February 2015.

The recoverable amount of the investment in
ReOil was estimated based on its value in use,
determined by discounting the future cash flows
to be generated from the continuing use of the
investment in ReOQil. The carrying amount of the
investment was determined to be higher than its
recoverable amount and an impairment loss of
HK$714,000 was recognised during the year.

On 22 October 2015, the Group sold all its equity
interest in EQ Partners Co. Ltd., for a consideration
of approximately HK$51,231,000 and recognised
a net gain of HK$18,118,000.

Statutory deposits with exchanges

Rental deposits HERE
Other receivable

Other receivable is secured by unlisted equity
instrument.

L EEFE

EHRARX B REERR
and clearing house ZAEERE

H B WRRIR

2015 2014

DA 2R

—E-HF —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
714 19,405

- 7,906

714 27,311

(714) —

- 27,311

MR-ZE-—FF BEREREREGEMmMMA
ReOQil, LLC ([ReQilNIRHE:E - EEE
1815 * ReQil R AT EERI T EEEEE -
WHR-E—RFE_AHILEE o

RReOilzREZIKREISEIRFERE
EBExtE MEFHEBENDRERIISERS
ARReQilZBREMELEZARBESARE
BREE KRHAE ZREZEREAESR
HalE £ WRFEARIELT714,000
BITREEE -

R-ZE-RE+HA=+=H  A&£EH
EWMNEQ Partners Co. Ltd. 22 IR
> REHNE51,231,0008 T AR
U5 H%E18,118,0008 T

2015 2014
—E-ERE —E—-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET

634 455

6,689 =
7,937 8,401
15,260 8,856

H FE UFRIE DA FE | IRAE T BRI 48 o

T
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Non-current financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Investment designated at fair value
through profit or loss Convertible
preferred shares

Current financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Investment designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity investment listed in Hong Kong

Equity investment listed outside Hong
Kong

Held for trading

Options

Annual Report 2015

B R FPEE AR 2 HRE
EHEE

EERAFEFABREZR
BEURRELKR

BAVFEFABREZREE
BMEE

EERAFESARSZ
RE

BB LM ZBRERE
BBREM LT 2RERE

KFEER
B

2015
—E-1F
HK$°000
FET

337,182
47,844

25,594

410,620

2014
—E-IF
HK$°000
FET

556,427

413,911
204

12,272

426,387



2015 2014
—E-hF —E—MmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Accounts receivable arising from BHRLEE ZEWERK ¢
securities brokerage:
— Cash clients - REEF 29,059 167,798
— Margin clients — RREEF 26,122 26,122
— Clearing house, brokers and — HEM - BERBSH
dealers 5 1,402
55,186 195,322
Accounts receivable arising from BRI RBHREEE 2EW
consultancy and advisory services BRX
— Corporate clients — hEEF 26,037 53,535
Accounts receivable arising from HERAFEGTFABRZE
disposal of financial assets at fair REEEE 2 BRI
value through profit or loss 243,700 -
324,923 248,857
Less: allowance for doubtful debts A REREME (28,669) (28,281)
296,254 220,576
The balances of accounts receivable from EER K& ;ﬁ_j REz2EWERR & 68
consultancy and advisory services include fees IEETPEHIEE & K g%ﬁ 2 2=
accrued for on-going advisory projects which 15§ %1 763, ooo,ﬁ T(Z & — M & :

have not been billed amounting to HK$1,763,000
(2014: HK$38,313,000).

38,313,000 7T) °©

The fair value of accounts receivable
approximates its carrying amount. The accounts
receivable arising from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss has
been settled subsequent to the reporting date.

AR 2 X FEHEEKREEMRS - ®
BEAR HERDFEFABRZZE
BMEEMELE 2 BRWRARCHIBE -
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(a) Ageing analysis of accounts receivable (a) FEWIRRZARER 2T

3R B Rz BB W BRK (40 BR R BR

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable

124

(b)

net of allowance for doubtful debts as of the BB RERDWT
end of the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-EREFE —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current BNHA 274,255 207,063
Less than 1 month past due BV 1EB 13,436 710
1 to 3 months past due BEA1Z3@EA 7,039 409
More than 3 months past due BHISMEA L 1,524 12,394
Amounts past due BHRE 21,999 13,513
296,254 220,576

The Group has procedures and policies
to assess the client’s credit quality and
defines credit limits for each client. All client
acceptance and credit limit are approved
by designated approvers according to the
client’s credit worthiness.

Accounts receivable which are past due
but not impaired

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable
balance are debtors with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$21,999,000 (2014:
HK$13,513,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not made provision for
impairment loss.
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(b)

FEERBRFRBKFEEF 2
FEEZ TBEZSRFZEER
B IEEMEF2EERFER
BAKEERBRAKBEBEEF 2
EREM -

€ I8 28 1B RO (B 2 FE W R X

AEBCZREVEREEZEERT
418 521,999,00058 T(=Z — Y
% :13,513,0008 v ) 2 & W BR
o RERERREHRC B
%ZF%jﬁkﬂﬁﬁltWEtHﬁ{EEﬂéﬁé



(b) Accounts receivable which are past due

(c)

but not impaired (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients which
are past due but not impaired represent
client trades on the The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (2015: HK$264,000,
2014: HK$57,000) and Australian Securities
Exchange Limited (2015: HK$nil, 2014:
HK$450,000) respectively which are
unsettled beyond the settlement date. No
impairment loss was provided for these
balances as either the Group held securities
collateral for those balances with fair values
in excess of the past due amounts or the
balances have been settled subsequently.
Collaterals held against such accounts
receivable are publicly traded securities.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients
of HK$21,735,000 (2014: HK$13,006,000)
which are past due but not impaired
represent accounts receivable arising from
provision of corporate finance, consultancy
and advisory services which have not yet
been settled and aged by their invoice
date. No impairment loss was provided for
these balances as these clients are trade
counterparties with sound credit rating and/
or reputation.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group has a policy for allowance
for doubtful debts which is based on the
evaluation of collectability, ageing analysis
of accounts and management’s judgement
including the creditworthiness, collaterals
and the past collection history of each
client.

(b)

(c)

I8 B AR OB B 2 FE W R K ()

REBFF2E@BHBRREERK
RR2BEREERHRERAE
BHMEXZMERRABD(ZZE—H
fF :264,00008T —F—MEF:
57,0008 T ) R BMNE S X Z
ERAR(ZZE-—HF & =%
— M4 : 450,000 ) HARBEEZ
EFERR - ARAEERZEER
FELATESRESME 2 SK
HRRERHEREEE  RAER
ZEEFEHREBERE - B
ERURREAZEFRBLTE

REGEEF 2C@HERMER
Iy Bk $X 21,735,000 T (=& — I
£ :13,006,0008 T ) FEiR At b 2
ME - ERKBARBELE ZRK
IR HRBERBEENARBE
REZH - HRZEEFR/EEFN
AR,/ ABERFZRIHF &
%%?ﬁ%%%ﬁ#&ﬁﬁ)&ﬂ%ﬁé

FE W RR K 2 B

AEBRBRERRBEEZEER
BBEBUR AR E PG ~ BRI Z
RRONMEREERBRUEREF 2B
2 R RB R W KRS 8 2

T
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(c)

Impairment of accounts receivable
(Continued)

The movement of the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year is as follows:

(c)

At 1 January R—A—H

Provision for impairment loss ERAREBEZBE
recognised

Amount recovered during the year &FRE = 7B

Amount written off 2 88 7R 18

At 31 December R+t=—A=+—H

Included in the allowance for doubtful
debts were individually impaired accounts
receivable which have financial difficulties
in making payments. Among the allowance
for doubtful debts, approximately
HK$26,122,000 (2014: HK$26,122,000)
relates to individually impaired margin
clients accounts receivable, HK$174,000
(2014: HK$132,000) relates to individually
impaired accounts receivable arising from
the business of dealing in securities and
HK$2,373,000 (2014: HK$2,027,000) relates
to impaired accounts receivable from
corporate clients.

The Group ceased providing margin
financing service since 2004 and the balance
represented the past due amounts due from
margin clients brought forward from 2004.
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FE WS RR K 2 BB (A7)

FRAZREREBESEHOT !

2015 2014

—E-EREFE —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

28,281 26,606

389 2,095
(1) (16)
- (404)

28,669 28,281

RRBEBEEREEAN KRS 2@
AEREERIR - RRIRES
o #26,122,0008 T(= & — M
£ 1 26,122,0007% 7T ) B2 1@ Bl 2
BEeEWRZLSEFRAEBR
M174,0008 (= & — M £ :
132,000 Jt ) B2 & Bl B B B 2 &
LEEERELECRWRZREHE
m2,373,00058 T (= & — 4 F :
2,027,000 5 ) B BB =2 FE Uk &
¥EZFRAEEHE -

AEBEH -_ZZTNFRELRAR
HETMERY  MBEBSKRBEEA =
ZENFREEZBRURBEEF
ZEHFRIR o



(d) Balance with related parties

As at 31 December 2015, included in the
accounts receivable from corporate clients
are amounts of:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Rental and utility deposits
Prepayments and other deposits
Other receivables, net of provisions

HK$1,563,000 (2014: HK$1,563,000)
receivable from Frontier Services Group
Limited (“Frontier Services”) where our
director Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
(“Mr. Ko”) is a substantial shareholder
and executive director of this company;

HK$50,000 (2014: HK$11,789,000)
receivable from KuangChi Science
Limited (“KuangChi”) where Mr. Ko is
an executive director of this company;

HK$13,000,000 (2014: HK$nil)
receivable from Shun Cheong Holdings
Limited where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder of this company;

HK$6,688,000 (2014: HK$nil) receivable
from EDS Wellness Holdings Limited
where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder of this company; and

HK$932,000 (2014: HK$nil) receivable
from Lajin Entertainment Network Group
Limited where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder of this company.

HERAREXREE
ANRIAEREMEE
HEWRIR - HIBREE

(d) EREEER Z&8R

A=

Z-HF+-A=+—-R X

BEERF 2BERAREE

(i)

(iii)

BREERBEEERA A
([EL/RB1 XRRAESS
RIBSLEE(TBEED)BZRF
ZEBRRRHATES) 2K
151,563,000 T(=F — M@
11,563,000 7T) ;

EWXBBERR QAN
Bl artEBzRrazH
TE=E)2FIE50,000 &t
(=ZZ— M4 : 11,789,000
JT)

'EJ
SAZRAZEERR) 2K
18 13,000,00058 T (=& —
F.8|);

FEUL EDS Wellness Holdings
Limited (S EEBZ AR ZE
Z R R ) Z 7 1E 6,688,000 %
T(ZE—NF 8 &

ERHNERREBERQ A
(BELERBZRAAZEER
R)2ZF1E932,0008 T (==
— g : &) -

2015 2014
—E-RE —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,976 1,479
9,062 4,890
7,631 10,459
18,669 16,828

The fair values of other receivables, deposits HMtmEWRIE  RERFBRFREBZAF
and prepayments approximate their carrying EHEKRmMEMRE - t@MEGRTARHER
amounts. The above balances are expected to be —FRWE o

recovered within one year.

—z-nEgy 2
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(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Deposits with bank RITER
Cash at bank and in hand

As at 31 December 2015, included a security
deposit with bank amounted HK$30,000,000
(2014: HK$20,000,000) for banking facilities.

The Group maintains segregated accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’
monies arising from its normal course of
business of the regulated activities. The
Group has classified the bank balances
— trust and segregated accounts under
current assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to
respective clients and other institutions on
the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The
Group is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.
The cash held on behalf of customers is
restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. As at 31
December 2015, client money maintained
in segregated accounts amounted to
HK$169,319,000 (2014: HK$23,999,000).
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RITRFRERE

RERRLEEHRBBRE

2015 2014
—E-E1E —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
30,000 20,000
4,132,922 54,620
4,162,922 74,620

R-E—RE+=-_B=+—8H "
SAMBITHERERE2RE
4 30,000,0008 T (=& — M & :
20,000,000 % 5T) °

AEBRAUTRBRALBIRSE
UEEELESHRETHERBRE
FEEZEFRE AEECKR
T&”rFE — EARBAYRFSEA
BEMBRRARZARBEEET -
YEEREFREZEMBLART
EMAEEMREIAEEZEMNF
EREEFREMEBZIRTK - XK
BRrE8FEAETFREREELRY
B REFEEZHESSESK
HEKHAT2ELERBPE(EFRK
H)RARFEREE - R=ZE—5
F+ZHA=1+—H ' EERBIK
FE2EFEFHE#A169,319,00058 7T
(ZZE—M4 : 23,999,00038T) °



(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before

taxation to cash used in operating

activities:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Non-cash consideration for
consultancy and advisory fees

Share of results of associates

Gain on partial disposal of an
associate

Gain on disposal of an associate

Net loss/(gain) on financial assets

Depreciation

Written back on disposal of plant,
property and equipment

Finance costs

Interest income

Provision for impairment loss of
goodwill

Provision for impairment loss of
accounts receivable

Recovery of provision for
impairment loss of accounts
receivable

Provision for impairment loss of
other receivable

Provision for impairment loss of
interest in an associate

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

Changes in working capital:

Increase in other non-current assets

Decrease/(increase) in accounts
receivable

Increase in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Increase in bank balances — trust
and segregated accounts

Increase in accounts payable

(Decrease)/increase in accrued
expenses and other payables

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due
to directors

Net cash used in operating activities

BRBEA (B51R) A
P
EERZAE2HFREA

E
BEBENE X8
BOHE-FREAT

e
HE—FE N Az Wi
EREEBE /(i)

ek
e
HENE - BERRER

L
AR
FIEKA
BEZAEBERE

EYRRES R 2R R
e R R B R 2
ffe

HitRWHIRRERRZ
B

R—EBEDRREZH
EEE2 BB

PRR A E I LR 2 4
2B

EEESEY
Hi3ERBEER M
FEWSRT RS/ ($210)

AtERHE  BER
BAEEM

RITLE — FEREY
REEm

FES AR ARSE N

Bt EARAEATE
(Fi2) /81

EAEEHARD)/
)

REXBRRRERH

(b)
RZBRE 28R

2015
“E-1F
HK$°000
FET

Note
Hrzt

(77,869)

(91,406)
(567)
(18,1 1?3)

99,899
2,567

17
60
(1,356)
3,484

389

13,104
74

26(e)ii) 15,734
(53,348)
(6,404)
159,476
9,832)

(145,320)
5,931

(98,999)
(382)

(148,878)

BRBLAT(B518) R R BT

2014
—E-IF
HK$'000
FET

759,327

(205)
1,193

(1,214)

(920,486)
3,583
154
(1,200)

18,478

(138,291)
(8,051)
(158,690)
(4,377)

(1,246)
108,735

121,451

51

(80,418)

—z-mEEg 120
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Accounts payable
— Cash clients
— Brokers and dealers

2015

—E-AF
HK$’000
F#ET

FEFBRFR
— BeER 171,927
— BREREEHE 25,694
197,621

2014
—E-IF
HK$’000
FET

28,489
163,201

191,690

Included in accounts payable are amounts
payable to clients and other institutions in
respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients and
other institutions in the course of the conduct
of regulated activities, which amount to
HK$169,319,000 (2014: HK$23,999,000)

All of the accounts payable are aged and due
within one month or on demand.

ENERREERRETSHEETHRERE
FEAEFREMEBUREEE 2ET
FEBIRTEEMENEEREMEE
ZFIE 169,319,000 8B T (= — U F :
23,999,000 7T) °

T A B 3 2 R 28 50 — {8 A PO 5038
RREREE °

2015 2014

—EB-FEE —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Accrued staff costs FEStE T AR 38,687 141,168
Stamp duty, trading levy and trading ERENER - XZBE

fee payables EX5E 86 119

Other payables HAth S FRIE 10,016 5,984

Amount due to directors EREERIE 149 531

48,938 147,802

All accrued expenses and other payables are
expected to be settled within one year or will be
settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle.
During the year, bonus provision accrued in 2014
amounting to HK$40,650,000 (2014: HK$nil) was
reversed.
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FrERTERAREMENSFIERERN
—FRFE AEREAEEZEELE
BRABE RAFE  R-F-—0NF
f9 FE 5t 7E AL % 8 40,650,000 8 T (= &
—OF - E#)WEL o



The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

(a) Current taxation in the statement of
financial position represents:

Provision for Hong Kong REEBEBRE
Profits Tax for the year
Provisional Profits Tax paid EATEHFE

SH

REFEREBRFMELIEEST RS
EERRBRIEBRHEEANZE 2B
BERHEGE ST RE SR
gl 9@%?%*1‘2 AHBAUZREAE
B ERHERERAE - REBESE
g EE&EEE%Q? ZESHEA
E5%¥stalfFHER SAEBAAR
ER%30,0008T(=F—WF < BA
#325,000 B T) o s EIERENGERE -

(a) MBERRRAZEBBIRE :

SHikkE

2015 2014
—E-EREFE —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
61,451 450
61,451 450

T

131



132

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) arising from:

At 1 January 2014

(Credited)/charged to profit
or loss

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015
(Credited)/charged to profit
or loss

At 31 December 2015

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

RARERE
HK$°000
FET
UTEEELCELSE
a8/ (8E):
RZE-NFE—-F—H 778
(FtN)/HMBER
(276)
RIE-MFE+=A
=1+-H 502
R-E-RF¥—-A—H 502
(tA)/nBaEsz
855
RIE-HF+ZH
=1+-H 1,357

At 31 December 2015, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax
losses of HK$178 million (2014: HK$183
million) to the extent that it is not probable
that future taxable profit against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax
losses amounting to HK$174 million (2014:
HK$183 million) do not expire under current

tax legislation.
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(b)

CRAZELHRAEERAE

AEERGSMBMRRRER ZE

EHBERE (BE)BHREHN
T :
Net
unrealised
gain on
financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or
Tax losses loss Total
BRAYE
STABHZ
tREEZ
AEH
HEER ey @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
(778) - -
276 - -
(502) — -
(502) — -
(14,004) 31,320 18,171
(14,506) 31,320 18,171

R-—-ZE-HFE+=-RA=+—8"
I £ Hi B 18 &5 $8178,000,000 8
t(=Z & — M & : 183,000,000%
T)ERELEKRIBEE  HNREB
BEALZEERERTIAATRAER
REFR BH R AZE B -
RBBITHBE LS ZEFHEESSE
174,000,00078 T(= & — 0 & :
183,000,00087T) N &fEM ©
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The reconciliation between the opening and AEEREERSBOZENEE
closing balances of each component of the REF2HRENRETOBEZHREE
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the B o AN AR EEIHR
consolidated statement of changes in equity FURFERZ2ESHFBEHINAOT :
on page 70. Details of the changes in the

Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the

(@) Movements in components of equity (a)

year are set out below:

The Company i AY=7
Shares held
byshare  Share-based  Accumulated
Share Share award payment (losses)/
capital premium scheme reserve  retained profit Total
ARARE N BA
itelE By Rit(EE)/
hx R EE B DB RERH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fir Fir FiEr Fiér FiEr Fir
At 1 January 2014 RZE-RE-A-H 4,115 493,613 - - (138,751) 358,977
Shares issued under share  REBAERGERT2RA
swap agreement 178 42,554 - - - 42,132
Transition to no-par value RZE-RE=A=RBEZ
regime on 3 March 2014 EREE 536,167 (536,167) = = = =
Issue of subscription shares ~ Ef7ERHA 40,000 - - - - 40,000
Cost of issuance of EGEL DTS
subscription shares (99) - - - - (99)
Shares issued under share  RIEBREHERTZRA
option scheme 34,055 - (34,055) 18,478 - 18,478
Shares vested under share  RERHEEHFSE 2R
award scheme - - 11,042 (11,042) - -
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2FRHAE
for the year - - - - 22,126 22,126
At 31 December 2014and ~ R=F-BE+-A=1-A
1 January 2015 k=2-1%-A-A 614,416 - (23,013) 7,436 (116,025) 482,814
Shares issued under share  RERBREART2RHA
award scheme - - - 15,160 - 15,160
Shares vested under share  BERAEEHASE 2R
award scheme - - 14,971 (14,971) - -
Exercise of share options TEERE 5,047 - - (1,694) - 4,053
Issue of subscription shares 7B KA 3,885,040 - - - - 3,885,040
Cost of issuance of BIABRA ZHA
subscription shares (6,358) - - - - (6,358)
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2FRHAR
for the year - - - - 33,068 33,068
At 31 December 2015 RZB-EE+ZA=t1-H 4,499,045 - (8,042) 5,931 (82,957) 4,413,977

T
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(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium reserve

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application
of the share premium account and
the capital redemption reserve was
governed by sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).
In accordance with the transitional
provisions set out in section 37 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3
March 2014 any amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account
has become part of the company’s
share capital (see note 26(e)). The use
of share capital as from 3 March 2014
is governed by the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Shares held by share award scheme
and share-based payment reserve

The Company’s shares held by Reorient
Share Award Scheme Nominee Limited
for the share award scheme are
presented as a deduction in equity as
shares held for share award scheme.

Share-based payment reserve
represents the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to
employees of the company that has
been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments.

(iii) Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose
on the revaluation of the trading rights
in the exchanges in Hong Kong in
prior years. The carrying value of the
trading rights have been fully amortised
in previous years. The remaining
revaluation reserve will be realised
when the Group disposes of the trading
rights.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note
2(u).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company
did not have any reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions
of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (2014: nil).

Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: nil),
nor has dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period.

Share capital

The transition to the no-par value regime
under the Companies Ordinance occurred
automatically on 3 March 2014. On that
date, the share premium account and any
capital redemption reserve were subsumed
into share capital in accordance with
section 37 of Schedule 11 to the Companies
Ordinance. These changes did not impact
on the number of shares in issue or the
relative entitlement of any of the members.
Since that date, all changes in share
capital have been made in accordance with
the requirements of Parts 4 and 5 of the
Companies Ordinance.
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(e)

Share capital (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s ordinary
shares are set out below:

e N

ARAREBRZESBHEINOT -

—E-FE

Number of
shares
ReZE
Issued and fully paid BERTRER
Balance brought forward RAIER 455,651,221
Shares issued under share swap  BIERAERHERT2RA
agreement -
Transition to no-par value regime R=ZF-ME=A=H
on 3 March 2014 BEZEREE -
Issue of subscription shares BORBROEZT
less costs of issuance of RBRG B
subscriptions shares 1,942,520,000
Shares issued under share option RIEBRE:E BT 2RH
scheme 1,165,173
Balance carried forward FELER 2,399,336,39%4
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled

to receive dividends as declared from time
to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

(i) Issue of shares under share swap
agreement

On 14 January 2014, the Company
allotted and issued 17,805,178 new
shares of the Company to Frontier
Services and in return Frontier Services
allotted and issued 56,976,571 new
shares of Frontier Services to the
Company pursuant to the share swap
agreement dated 23 November 2013.
Details of the share swap agreement
were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 November
2013.
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(e)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

Issue of subscription shares

On 7 May 2015, the Company entered
into five conditional share subscription
agreements with each of Yunfeng
Financial Holdings Limited, Harbour
Yields Limited, Violet Passion Holdings
Limited, Gentle Bright Development
Limited and Chosen Global Holdings
Limited (collectively, referred to as the
“Investors”). Pursuant to which the
Investors have conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, and the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue, a total of 1,942,520,000
ordinary share of the Company
(“Subscription Shares”) at an issue
price of HK$2.00 per Subscription
Share to the Investors in an aggregate
amount of HK$3,885,040,000. Out of
the 1,942,520,000 Subscription Shares,
1,342,976,000 Subscription Shares
representing a shareholding percentage
of approximately 56% as enlarged
by the issue of the Subscription
Shares upon the completion of the
subscription, would be subscribed
for by Jade Passion Limited (“Jade
Passion”), an indirect subsidiary
owned as to 73.21% by YFHL. The
subscription was completed on 9
November 2015, and Jade Passion
became the new controlling shareholder
and YFHL became the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

After deducting the expenses in
connection with the transaction
amounting to HK$6,358,000, the net
proceeds from the subscription were
HK$3,878,682,000.

Details of the issuance of subscription
shares and the use of proceeds have
been disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 18 August 2015.
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(e)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

Issue of subscription shares
(Continued)

On 26 June 2014, arrangements were
made for a private placement to
independent investors of 17,021,277
shares in the Company held by
Gainhigh Holdings Limited (“Gainhigh”),
at a price of HK$2.35 per share.
Pursuant to a subscription agreement
of the same date, Gainhigh subscribed
for 17,021,277 new shares in the
Company at a price of HK$2.35 per
share. The subscription was completed
on 9 July 2014 and 17,021,277
shares were issued to Gainhigh. After
deducting the expenses in connection
with private placement amounting
to HK$99,000, the net proceeds
from placement of ordinary shares is
HK$39,901,000, of which approximately
HK$3,105,000 was used as a funding
to an associated company in the
US whose principal activity is in the
provision of technical and specialist
services to clients interested in the
oil and gas assets and the remaining
proceeds has been deployed to support
the Group’s general operational funding
of its core business of securities
broking, corporate finance and direct
investments.
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(e)

(f)

Share capital (Continued)

(iii) Issue of shares under share option
scheme

During the year ended 31 December
2015, 1,165,173 share options were
exercised. On 30 October 2014,
10,495,412 share options were granted
by the Company under its share option
scheme to eligible persons (the “Share
Option Grantees”) to subscribe for the
same number of ordinary shares of
the Company. Details of the grant of
share options were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 30
October 2014.

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and
reserves stated on the Group’s and the
Company’s statement of financial position.
The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for the shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Company manages capital by regularly
monitoring its current and expected liquidity
requirements rather than using debt/equity
analyses. Neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries, except for Reorient Financial
Markets Limited (“RFM”) and Reorient
Capital Markets Limited (“RCM”), is subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
RFM and RCM are regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
and are required to comply with certain
minimum capital requirements according to
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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(f)

(a)

Capital management (Continued)

The management monitors RFM and RCM'’s
liquid capital daily to ensure they meet
the minimum liquid capital requirement in
accordance with the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”) adopted
by SFC. Under the FRR, RFM and RCM must
maintain its liquid capital in excess of HK$3
million or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities
whichever is higher. The required information
was filed with SFC on a monthly basis.
RFM and RCM were in compliance with the
capital requirements imposed by FRR during
the current and prior year except RFM has
breached the capital requirement for certain
days from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2014
and 30 September 2014 to 6 October 2014.
RFM has reported the incidents to SFC.

Share option scheme

The Company has a share option scheme
which was adopted on 21 July 2011 whereby
the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite eligible
participant (employee, director, consultant
of each member of the Group) to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The Company has issued in total
10,495,412 share options. 9,330,239 options
are immediately exercised at HK$3.65.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the remaining 1,165,173 share options are
exercised at HK$3.65.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R I5 R =P 5
27 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED 27 BEERGDZH#E)
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
(a) Share option scheme (Continued) (a) HBRHESHEI(E)
() The number and weighted average (i) BREZZHERNEFGTE
exercise prices of share options are EaT
as follows:
2015 2014
“B-1f i S 113
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
Mg BRE il 28! BRE
%@ 88 e 88
HK$ HK$
Y-y A
Outstanding at the beginning  REFH K47
of the year 3.65 1,165,173 - -
Granted during the year ERERE 3.65 - 3.65 10,495,412
Exercised during the year FERET 3.65 (1,165,173 3.65 (9,330,239)
Outstanding at the end of ~ MERHKTE
the year - 3.65 1,165,173
Exercisable at the end of ~ REKAFIT/E
the year - 3.65 1,165,173
HREBEBRAT

—E-REFH

141



142

(a)

Share option scheme (Continued)

(ii) Fair value of share options and

assumptions

The fair value of services received in
return for share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options is
measured based on the Black-Scholes
Option-Pricing model. The contractual
life of the share option is used as an
input into this model.

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

On the date of issuance

Fair value at measurement

date HK$1.45
Share price HK$3.73
Exercise price HK$3.65
Expected volatility 56.73%
Option life 3 years
Risk-free interest rate (based

on Exchange Fund Notes) 0.66%

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on
the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information.
Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a
service condition. This condition has
not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of
the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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(b) Share award scheme

On 17 October 2014, the board of directors
approved the adoption of the share award
scheme. The purpose of the share award
scheme is to (i) encourage or facilitate
the holding of shares by the selected
participants; (ii) encourage and retain such
individuals to work with the Company
and the Group and (iii) provide additional
incentive for them to achieve performance
goals, and the share award scheme took
effect on 30 October 2014.

The awarded shares are awarded by
issuing new ordinary shares. Before
vesting, the awarded shares are held in a
trust set up by the scheme.

The fair value of the awarded shares at the
date of the grant is charged to staff costs
and related expenses over the projected
vesting period being the period for which
the services from the employees are
rendered with a corresponding credit to
employee share-based payment reserve.

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees,
the related costs of the shares are credited
to share held for share award scheme,
and the related fair value of the shares are
debited to share-based payment reserve.
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(b) Share award scheme (Continued)

(i)

Details of the awarded shares

awarded

Date of
approval by
Board
Ezefs
A

30 Oct 2014
“g-qx
A=A
30 Oct 2014
“g-qx
T E:
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
T
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
tA=+1A
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
tA=1A
30 Oct 2014
—g-mf
T
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
A=A
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
TR
30 Oct 2014
“g-qx
e
30 Oct 2014
—g-qx
e
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
T
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
tA=+1A
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
1A= 18
30 Oct 2014
—g-mf
A=A
30 Oct 2014
“g-mf
W EY:
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Date of award

RHAMH

31 Oct 2014
-g-ns
tp=t-8
31 Oct 2014
-g-px
GERSS:
31 Oct 2014
g-ng
RS
31 Oct 2014
—g-pE
tA=1-8
31 Oct 2014
-g-nF
tA=1-8
31 Oct 2014
-g-ns
tA=1-8
31 Oct 2014
-g-ns
A=+~
31 Oct 2014
-g-mx
+A=+-8
31 Oct 2014
-g-nx
ERSS:
31 Oct 2014
-g-px
RS
31 Oct 2014
g-pE
R
31 Oct 2014
-g-nF
tA=1-8
31 Oct 2014
-g-nf
tA=t-8
31 Oct 2014
-g-ns
GERS:
31 Oct 2014
-g-ns
NS

Awarded
Sum

£BeH

HK$'000

TET

11,042

904

1,298

1,620

2,731

562

3,650

2,835

1,371

904

2,732

562

3,650

97

97

Number
of shares
issued
BRT
RHEAE

3,025,206

247,660

355,667

443,791

748,345

163,968

1,000,000

776,666

375,629

247,660

748,345

163,968

1,000,000

26,667

26,667

(b)

Number of
awarded
shares
awarded
ERHLRE
RHEE

3,025,206

247,660

355,667

443,791

748,345

163,968

1,000,000

776,666

375,629

247,660

748,345

163,968

1,000,000

26,667

26,667

R AD BT 8 (47
() ERHZEBRGFE

Average
fair value
per share

gR¥Y

AYE
HK§
BT
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65

3.65

3.65

Vesting period
GRE

31 Oct 2014 — 31 Dec 2014

“E-NE+A=+-HE
=E-ME+=A=1-H

31 Oct 2014 — 01 Feb 2015

“E-NETRA=t-HZ
“E-f1F¥Zf-H

31 Oct 2014 — 18 Feb 2015

“E-NE+A=t-RHZ
ZE-REZATNH

31 Oct 2014 — 26 Feb 2015

“E-NME+A=t-RZ
ZE-REZAZt5A

31 Oct 2014 — 20 Mar 2015

“E-NE+RA=t-RZ
ZE-REZfAC1H

31 Oct 2014 — 14 Aug 2015

“E-ME+A=+-HE
“Z-RE\ATHEA

31 Oct 2014 — 16 Sep 2015

—Z-ME+R=1t-RE
ZE-RENATH

31 Oct 2014 — 30 Oct 2015

“E-NE+A=+-HE
“E-RE+AZTH

31 Oct 2014 — 14 Dec 2015

“Z-ME+R=t-RZ
—Z-nE+-f+mA

31 Oct 2014 — 02 Jan 2016

“E-NETR=t-HZ
“E-R~E-AZH

31 Oct 2014 — 20 Mar 2016

“E-NE+A=t-AZ
—E-~EZAZ1H

31 Oct 2014 — 14 Aug 2016

“E-ME+A=t-HZE
“E-~ENATEA

31 Oct 2014 — 16 Sep 2016

“E-NE+A=t-RZ
ZE-RENBTAE

31 Oct 2014 — 29 Oct 2016

“E-mE+A=+-HAZ
“E-AETAZtHA

31 Oct 2014 — 29 Oct 2017

—Z-ME+R=1-HE
ZE—t+&E+AZTAA



(b) Share award scheme (Continued) (b) RGBT EI(E

(i) Details of the awarded shares vested (i) REXNCEFBEBRGFE
during the year
2015 2014
“E-1f “E-mE

Fair value Fair value

Number of of related Number of of related

Average fair awarded awarded awarded awarded

value per share  shares vested shares  shares vested shares

Date of BRYH EERRE HERBRGZ ERERE HERERGZ

award R A ATHE RAEE ALE RHEE NYE

HK$ HK$°000 HK$'000

AT TEr TEr

05Nov2014 —E-ME+-FEA 3.65 - - 2,650,702 9,675

14 Dec 2014 —E-ME+-F+MA 3.65 - - 374,504 1,367

01Feb2015 —ZE-HFE-F—H 3.65 247,660 904 - -

18 Feb 2015 —E-HE-ATN\H 3.65 355,667 1,298 - -

26 Feb 2015 —E-FTE-_A=-txA 3.65 443,791 1,620 - -

20 Mar 2015 —E-HFE=A=1H 3.65 748,345 2,731 - -

14 Aug 2015 —“E-HENBTMEA 3.65 153,968 562 - -

16Sep 2015 —E-AENATKA 3.65 1,000,000 3,650 - -

300ct2015 —E-HETA=1H 3.65 776,666 2,835 - -

14 Dec 2015 —E-HEFE+-A+tMA 3.65 375,629 1,37 - -

4,101,726 14,971 3,025,206 11,042

(iii) Movements in the number of awarded (iii) ERLEBRGEE ZZE

shares awarded

2015 2014

—E-EF —E-NE

Number of Number of

awarded awarded

shares shares

RBARHBE RBROBE

Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BERITHEE 6,305,033 =
Awarded 2% H - 9,330,239
Vested =h (4,101,726)  (3,025,206)

Outstanding at 31 December R+=-A=1+—80
RITHE 2,203,307 6,305,033

“z-nfEg P
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Operating lease commitments
As lessee
As at 31 December 2015, the total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

Within one year —FR

After one year but within five years —FHRERFR

The Group leases a number of offices under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to five years. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
foreign currency risks arises in the normal course
of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to accounts and other
receivables and bank balances (segregated
and general accounts). Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Annual Report 2015

R HERIE
EBREA
R=ZZBE—REFE+=ZA=+—H ' BEF

HECERHNCARREEAFEAER
HMARBEWNT -

2015 2014
—E-EREF —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
13,733 8,051
24,450 25,169
38,183 33,220

AEERBEEHEEARSEARLE -
HHALS A —=5F - SIEEERERE
FAEE -

AEFBEEEEBBETEHEEE R
BES  ARRIINEER - AEEEY
ZEBERR URAEEHEHZER
Bex 1 £R B oz B 75 L B B ORI B B
AT o

(a) FERR

AEBZEERBEERBEEWER
AREMEWRRBEBUREBITE S
(BYKR—REF) - EEEIAEE
BEHE WEEEEZEEERR
FRIE o



(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts and other
receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 0% (2014: 0%) and 25%
(2014: 7%) of the total accounts and other
receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

Bank balances (segregated and general
accounts) are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and management considers that
the credit risk for such is minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from accounts receivable are set out in note
19.

(a)

FERR(E)

PEBEWRR R E AL EWRIEM =
FEBBRE-—HBEZMBEEFIA
BRBVEENML  WEFEEE
REFBEXMNIMMRE 2L
KRB NRED » At REFFY
EZRFERKRSBZREFEKERHK
FRR7E 3 2 SEIRIR o

AEBCZEERBAEFESER
FzlRSEmETRE&E LKA
ETE£SERTE  HEERRE
REFBERFEEAREBLHERNE
EFEREEARAKREBEES - NEHE
R BREREFRREMEWKRTRE
BE OB (ZE—NE :0%) R
5% (ZE—UF :7%) 2 Bl FEU
KEBBAEFRAKREF

RITEFB IR —RERF) 37K
REEEZS2HE  EEERSD
BREERRED -

AtEAFEzE AR RS RFE
R B A TH IR AR S B AR R P &
B & & 2 MR E 0 AR R (E B
BRIR - AEEIEREHREME
STHEHEERBZER -

ERASEEBWRERERMES 2E
ERBzE—SEEREERER
MizE19 o
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(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, and to
ensure compliance with FRR. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirement and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group and the
Company’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company, as applicable, can be required
to pay:

As at 31 December 2015 R=-ZT—FHEF+=A

=Er=H
Accounts payable FE 1 BR X
Accrued expenses and BB AR EMEN
other payables IR

Amounts due to directors FE{TEZEEFRIE

Annual Report 2015

(b) REBEERRE

AEBRENEEEREEARG 2
ReEE SREUSEERUEN
BHRREEE  RBERETHEE
RRA - AEB 2 HRDEHREE
HARBHESFERBTRHEERZ®RZ
B UHERBERHBREHERR
BARESHEBZREAMETHE
ERNEEHERBABDEST
go

TRERMEARALAEHEE
RBEBRZBT AN HHR -
DRENVNKRBRARERE(BER
REHR R (7 8) LR 8|S H
RZBATNRITE2FNEFTIER) R
REBEA DT (RIFRME) A RE
AXNz&RAYFTESRL :

Contractual undiscounted

cash outflow

EHNRBEARER
Within Carrying
1 year or on amount at 31
demand Total December
R+=AH
—FRAH =t+t—Hz2Z
RER et REE
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
FExT FET FET
197,621 197,621 197,621
48,789 48,789 48,789
149 149 149
246,559 246,559 246,559



(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 RZ-Z—WE+=A
=+—H
Accounts payable FE 1 BR X
Accrued expenses and B AR EMEN
other payables IR
Amounts due to directors FEFNEEFIE

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cashflow interest
rate risk is mainly attributable to its bank
balances (trust, segregated and general
accounts). The Group’s fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate
overdue accounts receivable and fixed
deposits held under bank balance — trust
and segregated accounts.

The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. The management
monitors the Group’s exposure on an
ongoing basis and will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

(b) RBEERER(HE)

Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow

BHRMEBERER
Within Carrying
1 year or on amount at 31
demand Total December
B+=A
—FAR =+—Hz2Z
RER T IREE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
191,690 191,690 191,690
147,271 147,271 147,271
531 531 531
339,492 339,492 339,492

(c) F=mEp

AEBZREREFNZABERR
BERTERF(ET - BLR—KR
RE) - "EBZAFEFNREAR
TEW K E S B H EWARR R R
THEF — ERRBURFEAZ
EHER -

7N £ 8 B A1 3 2 A AT R 2R 8 B
K- BEERFEEEASEEZRA
B WEREFTERZEBEHPRR
BB o

T



Notes to the Financial Statements

M =RMEE
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 BIBEREEREMIAZAFE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENT (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIREBSRE)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEHRE
The following table details the interest TRHFMAAEBRFEHR 2
rate profile of the Group at the end of RZBR ©

the reporting period.

2015 2014
—E-IF —E-ME
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
L kS E2] BRFI= Ex]
% HK’000 % HK$000
FEr FET
Assets BE
General account bank —REFRTER
balance 0.001 - 0.01 4,128,306  0.001 — 0.01 48,831
Trust account bank balance  EEEFHITER 0.001 - 0.01 1,108 0.001 - 0.01 968
4,129,414 49,799
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) SEEZH
2015 2014
“E-1% “E-mE
Assume interest rate BERFZ=LH
increased by 1% 1%
Effect on profit after tax HRB G EF 2 ¥E
(HK$000) (F#7) 34,481 46

REORIENT GROUP LIMITED
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(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the increase
in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and has
been applied to the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date.
A 100 basis points (2014: 100 basis
points) increase in interest rates
represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates. The management
considers the effect of decrease in
interest rates is not significant to the
Company.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency and that are subject to
fluctuation in foreign exchange amounts
in the different currencies. The Group
considers that its exposure to USD is
insignificant, on the grounds that the Hong
Kong dollar is pegged to the USD. The
Group is exposed to currency risk arising
from various currency exposures, mainly to
the extent of its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and bank balances
in currencies other than the USD, such
as the Australian Dollars and Renminbi.
Management of the Group monitors the
foreign exchange exposure and will hedge
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group did not engage in the use of other
financial instruments for hedging purposes,
and there were no hedging instruments
outstanding as at 31 December 2015.

(c)

(d)

FMRER(F)
(i) BEER Y (E)

LEBIRE D TR A= L
AERBEHRBLESCER
RAKERZAFEZERMT
EHER 2R RER o R RiE N
100 EEE(ZZ—MF : 100
BEM)DEEEHMNESE
AR BB 2 EEER
ANETHRUAQRT ZHLER
j( o

SRS B

REBERUHINEER U2 E
WitEZEEREE  URITE
ERIESHRB2HE - ERNE
TEETHNE  AEERBHEHX
TRZBEBAEERIK - REBEEHR
HUXET U EB(MRTR AR
W)RBENUZBRLAFEHFARBTZ
TRMEERRITEFHEAZ RE
E¥RER - ASEEEREESI
Emk - WiENAEEERERE
ERINERERE o

BE-_Z—HFE+-A=+—HL
FE AEETEEAHEtESHRT
BEEH AR RZF-—RF+=
B=t—B O FEFAAFEYEHT
H o

T
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(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) HShEEmEBs(48)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) EH¥EREERE
The following table details the Group’s TRHEFINAEBRKEI RS
exposure at the end of the reporting UAREBE N EE B TUNE
period to currency risk arising from BitEzeRAEESEEHR
recognised assets or liabilities EEEBRERIEIE -RE5
denominated in a currency other than ms > BESEERETLUE TS
the Group’s functional currency of L=

Hong Kong dollars. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are expressed in Hong Kong dollars.

2015
“E-1%
United United
States Japanese China  Korean Australian Kingdom Singapore Canadian
Dollars Yen Renminbi Won  Dollars  Sterling  Dollars  Dollars

S A AR® EE An RE Fsr nx
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000
FEr FEr FEr  FEr  FEr  FEr  FEr  TEx

Financial assets ~ RAT(E AR
at fair value BZEREE
through profit or

loss - - - - 47,844 - - -
Accounts and B R A A

other receivables  FEWFIE 1 - - - - 2 1 1
Bank balance RITEE

— trust and - £k

segregated BUKF

accounts 1,745 - 123 - 115 54 1 15
Cashandcash  BERKBEESE

equivalents HH 12,867 80 3,815 - 624 37 293 42
Accounts and ERESRE

other payables  E{TFIE (1,745) - (123) - (115) (54) (1) (15)

Net exposure to  EHEBALE
currency risk ek 12,868 80 3,815

48,468 39 204 43

162 Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements

R I5 R =P 5
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 BIBEREEREMIAZAFE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENT (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) IR (E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) EXEPEGRAEE)
2014
—E-mE
United United
States  Japanese China  Korean Australian  Kingdom Singapore Canadian
Dollars Yen Renminbi Won  Dollars ~ Sterling  Dollars  Dollars
ES AE  ARH #E i B HET mx
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FiEn tEr  TEn tEr  TEn tEr  TEr  TEn
Interest in REEARZ
associates B 870 - — 26,441 = = = =
Financial assets ~ RATHEAR
at fair value B EREE
through profit or
loss - - - - 204 - - -
Accounts and RS R E
other receivables  FEWFhIE 1 162,146 - - 727 2 1 5
Bank balance RITER
— trust and - Bk
segregated BIKRF
accounts 992 - 1 - 146 56 7 19
Cashandcash  BEKBELZE
equivalents 5E 11,704 - 10,281 - 687 39 227 48
Accounts and ERESRE M
other payables  FEf{FE (992) (161,918) (1) - (135) (56) ) (19)
Net exposureto  EMERAIE
currency risk B 12,575 228 10,281 26,441 1,629 41 228 53
HREEARAT

—E-REFH

153



154

(d)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s significant net exposure
to Renminbi and Australian Dollars at
the reporting date and the estimated
impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for
the year had the foreign exchange
rates of Renminbi and Australian
Dollars changed at that date are
illustrated below. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between
the HKD and the USD would be
materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the USD against
other currencies.

2015
ZE-1f
Appreciation/
Net assets  (depreciation)
in foreign in foreign
currency currency
MeRE/
NEEEFE (BfE)
HK$'000 %
FEn
Renminbi ARE 3,815 10
(10)
Australian dollars 48,468 10
(10)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at
the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

Annual Report 2015

(d)

Effect on profit
after tax and
retained profits
HBRREENR
REGRR2 YE
HK$'000

FEn

319
(319)

4,047
(4,047)

SN R B ()

(i)

BBE T

AEERBEHEHZERA
RERBERRBAEZRARR
ZHZARBRBRTERKE
HASBEAFERF,(FI8)
ZAGRT S EHANT o st
5 BRBTEEIT ZHEE
RIGEARMBETREME
BeBEREYTE -

Net assets
in foreign
currency

hEEERE

2014
Z2-PE
Appreciation/
(depreciation)
in foreign

currency
MNerE/
(BE)

Effect on profit

after tax and
retained profits
HBREENR
REEAcZE

HK$'000 % HK$'000
FiET 7T

10,281 10 858
(10) (656)

1,629 10 136
(10) (136)

BREIMBRERSFHCE
AREHTEBZIN|EHAR
STAREEEEINEE R 2 S E
TR - ZE2E-—MFE2HHIE
MEEEEEELT



(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
changes arising from equity investments and
derivative instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
(see note 18) held by the Group. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are dealt with in consolidated income
statement. The performance is monitored
regularly, together with an assessment of its
relevance to the Group’s strategic plans.

The underlying equity securities of the
Group’s unlisted derivative are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
At 31 December 2015, it is estimated
that an increase/decrease of 5% in the
relevant stock, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
earnings) as follows:

Change in the relevant equity HBREARTERE
price risk variable: 288

Increase )l

Decrease "D

(e)

% 18 R e

AEEEHSAKEESE I ERED
FEHFABSZEMEE ZRAR
ERVTETA(RMEI8)IEEZ
REZBER - BAFEFTAES
CEMEELNVEESBELEZED
DRGEERBERTER - HRBTY
ZEMER  URERNEEREME
sF &l Z ARBAPE1E HRT A ©

AEBMFELEHITETEZHBRA
BEDNEBHARZMAERLA
tm -R=ZE—FHFE+=ZA=1+—
B At fEEEEREL MR D
5% MAABHMTEEZHEIZTT
B AEBZBRHERBEAN(RRE
ER) &M B mT

2015 2014

“E-1f —E-mE
Effect on profit Effect on profit
after tax and after tax and
retained profit retained profit
BB %R % RA
RREER Rx&EH
Fe bk 7
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FET FET
5 17,616 5 46,243
(5) (17,597) (5) (46,451)

T
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()

Fair value measurement

Financial instrument measured at fair
value

(1)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instrument measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement
date.

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Annual Report 2015

(f)

AP EIE

URFlEGTEZZMTA
() FEEE

TREJUEEHEIRIBE
HAGFTEBZAEEEHITAL
FE - DREFBMBREE
BISE135% » 2 FHEHIEFRR
EDBEA=ZRATERBE - A
FEFEZRBNSEMRELE
TR Z28 ABE 2 TBEMLER
EEMMoBEREENT :

s F-HME: AFEE
£ /58 — R A 85 (B
RIERHZHEEEE
FEEEERHB 2K
KABERE)TE -

s E-LMME: XFEE
P58 — vt A BB (BN R
REINFEF -—R2TEE
WARE) - BIWEMEN
BEAFAEHERABE
SFE - FAAEHERAY
BEALETSREZS
ABE -

. ESHEE: AVEE
AEARTHEZH A
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()

Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial instrument measured at fair
value (Continued)

( 2DFEFAERGE)
URFlEGEZEHMTA(E)

(1)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The table below analyses financial
instrument carried at fair value, by
valuation method:

Recurring fair value RERNTETE
measurement

Investment designated as at R AFEFABREZETE
fair value through profitor % :
loss:

Trading securities: R5ES5
— Listed -t

Derivative financial fTESMIA .
instruments:
— Unlisted convertible - FERTRRELR

preferred shares

Held for trading: HIFEE:

— Unlisted share option - ¥rmERE

Unlisted convertible preferred shares
amounted to HK$230,767,000 and
HK$175,490,000 have been converted
to listed equity shares on 17 April 2015
and 30 December 2015 respectively
and were disposed of during the year
ended 31 December 2015. Except that,
there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

(i)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2015

categorised into

R-F-EF+-A=1-A

RFEHE (E)

TRBIFEESEZD T UARF
BEHRZESRMT A :

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2014
categorised into

R-Z-WE+ZA=1-H

ZAVEHERER ZATEHERES
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
- ot ] £-R R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEn FiEn FiEr FiEr
385,026 - 414,115 -
- - - 556,427
- 25,594 - 12,272
385,026 25,594 414,115 568,699

A#1230,767,00078 7T ) 175,490,000

BRAZELTOBRRELRKRE
DRAR-E—FREWNA+tH
F—ZE-HE+-A=+HE
BAEITEZRN  YERE
EE-HFE+-HA=+—H
IEFEHE - BRI 55—
WRE_REPEER -
BEAFEHE=RoEHE -
AEB HEAEHR 2HRE
HETERERAFERER
B EHER o

T
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(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial instrument measured at fair
value (Continued)

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The Group determines the fair value
of share option by applying an option
valuation model technique such as the
Black-Scholes Option-Pricing model.
The Group determines the fair value of
convertible preferred shares by applying
discounted cash flow method. Inputs
are based on market related data at the
end of the reporting period.

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

(i) Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements

Gross amount
of recognised

financial
assets
BEALH
Type of financial EENE
assets SREEER HK$'000
FET

Accounts receivable EWEEf Y

due from clearing B

house 2,842
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( 2DFEFAERGE)
URFlEGEZEHMTA(E)

(i) F=RLFEGBIAHZIGE
T ERBIA BZ

AEBEBEAMAIR —
gFEd I BEEERESHE
HEEA LT EFEEEREZQ
FE AEEEBEARESR
EBRRIEETRRELRZ
DNFEH BABBUEERZ
MSHEERBEREE -

(9) EFETRHEERTHMAE

(i) ZRREH BHNRIZEE
FEGHEXEU A ZHE
E

As at 31 December 2015
R=B-EF+-A=1-H

Gross amount
of recognised
financial
liabilities
offset in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position
RESHERR
RTEHE2 R
AERAGAE
HK$°000
FET

(2,842)

Related
amounts not
offset in the
consolidated

statement
of financial
position
EA
HRRREHZ
ek
Net amount of
financial assets
presented
in the
consolidated
statement
of financial  Cash collateral
position received Net amount
REEHERR
RHESzom BB
EEFE HeEAR ]
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET A7 A7
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements

Rt %5 40 ROBA EE

29 BiEREEREBMIAEZAFE
)

(74
() BEHETHEERSBMAGEGE

() ZRREH BHRHIZEE
FHEG AR GEZEME
E (&)

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2014
R-B-ME+-A=1-A
Related
amounts not
offset in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
BEAREBE
HRFDEE
ek
Gross amount
of recognised
financial ~ Net amount of
liabilities ~ financial assets
offset in the  presented in the
consolidated consolidated
Gross amount statement statement
of recognised of financial of financial ~ Cash collateral
financial assets position position received Net amount
RESHERR  WNESHERR
B ERASE RTEHZER  RPEI2ER 2K
Type of financial SREEER EEAE HiRABEE BEFE RERRm B
assets HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
78 FEn FEn FEn FEn
Accounts receivable  [EWEE T
due from clearing FEWUR S
house 4,752 (8,719) 1,033 - 1,033

BREEEMERAT
“E-mFFR 00



(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial () EEtmEERSRMAEE)
liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial liabilities subject to (i) ZRREH BHRIZEE
offsetting, enforceable master FHEGERELNGRZEHE
netting arrangements or similar =
agreements

As at 31 December 2015
R-E-L%+-A=1-H
Related
amounts not
offset in the
consolidated

statement
of financial
position
A
HRRDEHZ
ek
Net amount
Gross amount of financial
of recognised liabilities
financial assets presented
offset in the in the
Gross amount consolidated consolidated
of recognised statement statement
financial of financial of financial Collateral
liabilities position position pledged Net amount

RERHBRRE  REEHBRR
RIS ROEEZCR  RA2IzEW BEfZ

Type of financial SREEER BEAE HLREE4E EERE il 58
liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Accounts payable ~ FEF&ERZ
due to clearing L
house 28,536 (2,842) 25,694 - 25,694
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities subject to

offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements or similar
agreements (Continued)

29

i
(74

Rt %5 40 ROBA EE

NEEREEREMTIAEZATE
)

() BEHETHEERSBMAGEGE

(i) ZRREH BRI ZEE
FHEGHEXENGEZEHE
&(#&)

As at 31 December 2014
R=B-ME+=f=1-H

Related
amounts not
offset in the
consolidated

statement
of financial
position
BERGEOH
HRRPEHEZ
RELE
Net amount
Gross amount of financial
of recognised liabilities
financial assets presented
offset in the in the
Gross amount  consolidated  consolidated
of recognised statement statement
financial of financial of financial Collateral
liabilities position position pledged Net amount
C NABAEBRR  REAUBRR
BRIER RPEHZEE  RPEI2ER &
Type of financial SREEER BEAE ALRBfEAE BERR gl B
liabilities HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$:000
AT 7T T T FEr
Accounts payable ~ EFZEf
due to clearing SRR
house 3,719 (3,719) - - -
HREBEBRAT

—E-REFH



162

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the
“net amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities presented
in the consolidated statement of
financial position”, as set out above,
to the accounts receivable and
accounts payable presented in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.

() BEHETREERESBMAMEHE)

(iii) T #BLEXFBIRGENE

Net amount of financial assets 0 X FrHIAKEEE >

after offsetting as stated above & @IEEFE

Financial assets not in scope of WINIKEIWBHE R =

offsetting disclosure THEE
Impairment losses REEE

Net amount of financial liabilities 340 £ SXErBIAIKEE B~

after offsetting as stated above &REEFE

Financial liabilities not in scope W IRIKEIWBHE R 2

of offsetting disclosure TRBE
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MRREFZIZEHBEER
S EF R E Bk

R 72 T 2 JEW AR R AT
2015 2014
—ZF-1Ff —ZF—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
- 1,033
324,923 247,824
(28,669) (28,281)
296,254 220,576
25,694 -
171,927 191,690
197,621 191,690



The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

In addition to the related party information
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group entered into the following material RG o
related party transactions.
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEAEMS

Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the

highest paid employees as disclosed in note

9, is as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total remuneration is included in “staff

costs” (see note 6(a)).

REBR-ZE-HER=-TE-—NE+=
B=+—HYEEMEARKREARE -

BRI BHMREMEBOTRE2BBAL
EXN REBETUTERBEBAL

AEBITEEBAEMS (B
MESBEEXNTFARAESZ
THERMEIMKESXNTE TR

SHEECEFE)WNT :

2015 2014

—E-hRFf —ZE-M0OF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FBT FET

SHIER 56,577 58,946
BREERN - 201
56,577 59,147

6(a)) °

e BB AIETARA J(RME

T
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(b) Other tra

Placing commission
Brokerage fee income (note (i)
Advisory fee income (note (ii))

Note:

nsactions with related parties

BEERAE

(i) The Group provided brokerage services to

()

(i)

China WindPower Group Limited and
Frontier Services Group Limited where
our director Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder and executive director in
these companies; and

China Jiuhao Health where Mr. Yu Feng
(“Mr. Yu”) is a substantial shareholder
and one of our independent non-
executive directors, Dr. Wong Yau Kar,
David, BBS, JP, is an independent non-
executive director of this company.

(i)  The Group provided advisory services to

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Annual Report 2015

KuangChi Science Limited where our
director Mr. Ko is an executive director
of this company;

China Jiuhao Health where Mr. Yu is a
substantial shareholder and one of our
independent non-executive directors, Dr.
Wong Yau Kar, David, BBS, JP, is an
independent non-executive director of
this company;

Lajin Entertainment Network Group
Limited (formerly known as China Star
Cultural Media Group Limited), where
our director Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder of this company;

Shun Cheong Holdings Limited where
our director Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder of this company;

EDS Wellness Holdings Limited where
our director Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder of this company; and

Huanxi Media Group Limited (formerly
known as 21 Holdings Limited) where
our director Mr. Ko is a substantial
Shareholder during the Year.

%%,.E%LI&A (BaZ (i)
A B WA (BT (i)

(b) EHEBALETZHMEXRS

BEE -

(ii)

2015 2014
—E-RE —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

- 75

5,448 =
144,353 47,410
149,801 47,485

REE@TIA LT RELLRS

U]

(i)

THEEEEERATARSL
LIRBEEARDE (AT
E%%ii%‘?*‘-"TZE
ERRRYTES) ;

PTEHIGREEXERLQT
(EEXRETELEEDRZA
AXEERR RAQRA-F
BIYFHTESERERL,
BBS, JPRZ AR 2B ¥
BITES) -

y \
1|

REBEB T I AL RHFEARS

(i

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

HERBEFRAT(RLQAE
g%%i%%ﬁﬁﬂZiﬂﬁﬁ
) 5

TEIKREEEXEARLDF
(EEEBZRATERR -
REAQNB-—EBB/UFHTE
EEREMEL, BBS, JPRZ
DA ZBIFHTES) ;

EDS Wellness Holdings
Limited (KA AR ESZSS L E
AZLARZEERR) &

HEEREARLR (AIME2142
RERLB)N(ARBDESS
EERFFERABZRAAZ
FERR)



2015 2014

—F-RF —F-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
e FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RIE ARz 226,326 419,631
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 226,326 419,631
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BRAFETTABRZ
through profit or loss SRMEE 101,418 63,244
Prepayment FETFRIE 978 145
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEEEEH 4,085,409 361
Total current assets RBEEHAE 4,187,805 63,750
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued expenses and other FEstE AR H M ESFRIE
payables 10 36
Amounts due to directors E{TEEFIE 144 531
Total current liabilities nBEEEE 154 567
Net current assets RBEEFE 4,187,651 63,183
NET ASSETS EERE 4,413,977 482,814
EQUITY =
Share capital and other statutory BRZ K H 3k &
reserves 26(a) 4,499,045 614,416
Other reserves Hibf#E 26(a) (85,068) (131,602)
TOTAL EQUITY R 4,413,977 482,814
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board R-ZB-—RE-_AT+/\BEEEEHE
on 18 February 2016 and are signed on its behalf REEFRILATIRRESE
by:
Li Ting Huang Xin
g B
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
HITEBFTHAES BITESE

—s-mEgy 00
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The directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate holding company of the Company as
at 31 December 2015 to be Yunfeng Financial
Holdings Limited which is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and beneficially owned as to
40% and 60% by Mr. Ma Yun and Mr. Yu Feng,
respectively. Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited
does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a few
amendments/new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2014
and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
ERMNBRELNCFERE(CE-— 22— NFEH)

EERALRDAR=-ZE-—HE+=A
S+ - HAEERRARRGRERAT
%*ﬁ%ﬂ?hﬁmﬂﬂ’$ﬂjﬁﬁ
EREFMRY U2HBEELRER
EEELERERLI0% R60% c EfES
R IR A PR A B I 4R BB RS 3R R LA
DPRALER -

BEAPBBERTXEH  SBSFE
NEERMGSBEIT A HTER &
ZEITAREIARBE-ZT-—NF+=
A=t —HILEFEEMARER  FRRAE
MB|MRDEM - BREUTARERE
EHBEIETARER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RELF BN 2 &35
e LR

1 January 2016
—E—-XRE¥-H—8H

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint

operations

BRUBRELENE 1R ZBILR  WERAEERZZE

1 January 2016

TR —Z2-"¥—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable

methods of depreciation and amortisation

BBETERFE16 SRREBSFIERE IR ZIBRTA » WEZTER#H

FZEE

Amendments to HKAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements

BRETERNFE 27 R 2BER AN » B HIHE 2 #Ea %

1 January 2016
—XE—A—R

1 January 2016
—E—-XRE—HA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its associate or joint venture

BBETEAE10 RREBSALERE 28R 2BIA  REFHEABE LA

REETREEELELRA

Annual Report 2015

1 January 2016
—E-X"F¥—-A—H



Notes to the Financial Statements

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (Continued)

Rt %5 40 ROBA EE

34 EHEMERBE-_ZE—HFET=H

S+ -—BLEFEHNRERZIEE]
KA EARBRE2 RS

(&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTEHBARZ&HSE
Z a5 BB EN

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

BBETENEAR BTN  KESE

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BEBUBIRELRE 158 FFEHZ N

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BBUBREERF N H LA

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

1 January 2016
—ZE-x¥—-HA—H

1 January 2017
—®—t£—A—H

1 January 2018
—ZE2-NF—HA—H

AEBEEFEZSETARDL EHN
HE AT E ESBEH2ERE
RMZEEITATKRAIEEHES UK
BREBREATE -

BEEEARAT
—E-REFH
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RESULTS

Revenue

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Basic (loss)/earnings per
share (HK$)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Property, plant and
equipment

Goodwill and intangible
assets

Interest in associates

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Other non-current assets

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Share capital and other
statutory capital reserves
Other reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Annual Report 2015

R&
e

BRBLAT (B51) /%A
BiA

REEER/ (B])

BREX(FE)/
BRI(ET)

BERER

nE - BER

RB
BER

BEE
RBE D E 2B
BAFET ARG Z

TREE
HitERBEE
RBEEFR
FRBEE

BRAREMEEER
fiif
H ittt

FERER

ERAH

2015
—“E-1F
HK$°000
FE

193,967

(77,869)
(79,172)

(157,041)

(0.21)

13,930

550

15,260
4,749,774
(18,171)

4,761,343
4,499,548
260,759

4,760,307
1,036

4,761,343

2014
—E-mE
HK$°000
FET

133,370

759,327
(450

758,877

1.73

5,289

550
27,311

556,427

8,856
422,468

1,020,901
614,919
400,015

1,014,934
5,967

1,020,901

2013
—E-=F
HK$°000
FET

77,516

(87,360)

(87,360)

(0.22)

6,247

550
33,076

805
120,391

161,069
498,231
(343,184)

155,047
6,022

161,069

2012
—E-—F
HK$'000
FET

46,796

(96,307)

(96,307)

(0.25)

6,897

735
158,523

166,155
416,273
(255,965)

160,308
5,847

166,155

HK$°000

FET

22,207

(8,802)

(8,802)

(0.07)

8,920

430
246,911

256,261
416,273
(160,012)

256,261

256,261



REORIENT GROUP LIMITED

Suites 3201-3204, One Exchange Square,
8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong
T 852 2843 1488

HEREBBRAT
BEBTRELESSH
REEIB1EE3201-3204F
T 5% 852 2843 1488
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